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Registration of an overseas company opening
a UK establishment
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Companies House

A fee 15 payable with this form
Please see "How to pay’ on the last page

& What this form is for X What this form 1s NOT for g
You may use this form to regster a You cannot use this form to %

UK establishment the details of an existing corfies
officer or establishment Y

Qi

9/10/2013
COMPANIES HOUSE

Part 1

Overseas company details (Name)

B

Corporate name of overseas company

Corporate name @

Toumaz Ltd

Do you propase to carry on business in the UK under the corporate name as
incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

+ To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3
-+ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2

-+ Filling in this form

Please complete in typescript {10pt
ot above), or In bold black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indlicated by ~

@ This must be the carporate name in

the home state or country in which
the company 1s incorporated

B

Alternative name of overseas company *

Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business
in the UK

Alternative name
{if applicable) @&

I Toumaz Group Ltd

|

A company may register an

alternative name urder whech 1t
proposes to carry on business in the
United Kingdarn under Secyion 1048
of the Companies Act 2006 Once
registered it 1 treated as being its
corporate name for the purposes of
law in the UK

Overseas company name restrictions©

This section does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA) company
registering Its corparate name

Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensitive or
restnicted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a
government department or other speafied body

[ ] 1 confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive ar restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropnate, has been
sought of a government department or other speafied body and | attach a
copy of their response

O Overseas company name

restnictions

A list of sensitive of restricted words
or expresstons that requrre consent
can be found In guidance available
on our wehsite

www compan:eshouse gov uk

BIS

Innovadan & Skills

Deparpment for Business
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2

Overseas company details

Particulars previously delivered

UK establishment
registration number

Have partrculars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
anather UK establishment @

7 No GotoSectionB2

+ Yes Please enter the registration number helow and then go to Part 5
of the form Please note the onginal UK establishment particulars
must be filed up to date

EERRREEEE

@ The particulars are legal form,
identity of register, number an
registration, director and secretartes
details, whether the company 1s

a credit or financial institution,

law, govermung law, accounting
requirements, obyjects, share capital,
constitution, and accounts

Credit or financial institution

Is the company a credit or financial instritution? @

1 Yes
No

B Please tick one box

Company details

If the company is registered in 1ts country of incorporation, please enter the
details below

Legal form @

|Publ1c Limited

Country of
incorporation *

|Caymans Islands

Identity of reqister
i which 1t s
registered @

Registration number in

that register

[Cayman Islands

|
[ofalslolzls T T T

© Please state whether or not the
company is imited Please also
include whether the company 1s
a prvate or public company If
applicable

O This will be the registry where the
company 1s registered in 1ts parent

country

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

+ Yes Complete Sections B5 and B6
3 No Go to Section B6

Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company Is incorparated

Governing law @

Cayman Islands

Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents
under parent law?

4 Yes Complete the details below
+No GotoPart3

@ This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
incorporation of companies in that
state

CHFPQ00
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Regstration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Please give the period for which the company is required to prepare accounts by
parent faw

From

To

eI

Please give the peniod allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting period

Months

v [2

e

Latest disclosed accounts

Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
applicable, with a certified translation @

Yes
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed
Please tick this box If you have enclosed a copy of the accounts

[0 Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts

] Please tick this box if no accounts have been disdlased

@ Please tick the appropriate box{es)

CHFPOQO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 3

Constitution

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delivered with this application
- Certified copy of the company’s constitution and, if apphcable, a certified
translation

Please tick the appropnate box{es) below
| have endlosed a certfied copy of the company's constitution @
(1 I enclose a certified translation, if apphcable ®

O A certsfied copy 15 defined as
a copy certified as correct and
authenticated by - the secretary or a
director of the company, permanent
representative, adminstrator,
adminisirative receiver, recewver
manager, receiver and hquidator

@ A certified translation into English
must be authenticated by the
secretary or a director of the
company, permanent representative,
admimistrator, administrative
TeceIver, recever manager, receiver
and hiquidator

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

+ Yes Go to Section C3
3+ No Goto Part 4 'Officers of the company’

Constitutional documents

Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the

company?

- Address of pnncipal place of business or registered office in home country
of ncorparation

- Objects of the Company

- Amount of issued share capital

3 Yes Go to Part 4 "Officers of the company’
% No  If any of the above details are not included in the constitutional
documents, please enter them 1n Section C4

The infarmation 1s not required if 1t 15 contained within the constitutianal
documents accompanying this registration

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of pnncipal place of business or registered office in the
country of incorporation ®

Building name/number

190
Street | Elgin Avenue
Post town !Grand Cayman
County/Region ICayman Islands
Postcode IK ITITIQ_ITFO—I?F
Country lCayman Islands
Please give the objects of the company and the amount of 1ssued share capital
Objects of the The objects for which the company was formed are unrestricted
company @

Amount of 1ssued
share caprtal @

I1 198,053,901 Ordhnary shares of 0 25p

© This address will appear on the
public record

O Please give a brief description of the
company’s business

© Please speafy the amount of shares
1ssued and the valug

CHFPOOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part4

Secretary

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment?

4 Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section 81
and then go to Part 5 of this form
2 No  Complete the officer details

For a secretary who 1s an indwidual, go to Section D1, for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E1, for a director who 1s an indwidual, go to Section F1, or for a
corporate director, go to Section G1

Continuation pages

Please use a contnuation page
if you need to enter more officer
details

Secretary details®

Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company
Please complete Sections D1-D3 For a corporate secretary, complete
Sectrons E1-E5 Please use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s)

Sumame

Former name(s)®

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections Et ES to enter
corporate secretary details

Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
which have been used for busingss
purposes during the period of

this return Marrnied women do

not need to give former nameas
unless previously used for business
purposes.

Secretary’s service address©

Bulding namefnumber

& Service address
This 1s the address that will appear

Street | on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
l address.
Post town | H you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record
et [ [ [ [ [ [
Country l
m Secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary Please tick one box O1f you have mdicated that the extent
of your authonity 1s mited, please
Extent of authonity provide a brief description of the
0O uLmted© limited authanty in the box betow
B Unhimited ©If you have indrcated that you are

Description of [imited
authanity, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone
O Jontly ®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

not guthorised 1o act alone but only
|omntly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s} with whom you are
authonised to act below

CHFPQOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary

m Corporate secretary details©

Use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company QRegistered or pincipal address
Please complete Sections E1-ES Please use a continuation page if necessary This 15 the address that will appear
on the publec recard This address
Name of corporate INTERTRUST must be a physical location for the
bady or firm delivery of documents It cannot be
| a PO box number {unless contaned
wathin a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotlard) number

Building name/number | 190

Street |ELGIN STREET

Post town GRAND CAYMANS

County/Region | CAYMAN ISLANDS

Fosicode [«[v[rlofofofs[

Country | CAYMAN ISLANDS

H Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area {EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

E EEA companies @
Please qive detalls of the register where the company file 1s kept (including the  |@EEA
relevant state] and the registration number in that register A full st of countries of the EEA can
be found 0 our guidance
Where the company/ www companieshouse gov uk
firm 1s registered ® ©This 15 the register mentioned in
Articfe 3 of the First Company Law
151
Registration number | Directive (68/131/E€C)
m Non-EEA companies
Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by~ |@Non-EEA
which it is governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which Where you have provided details of

the register {including state} where

tt i1s entered {including the state) and its registration number in that register
the company or firm 15 registered,

Legal form of the | LIMITED ¥;1J:t|:'|et;slt5$rso pravide its number in
corporate body

or firm l

Governing law | CAYMAN ISLANDS

't applicable, where | avraN 1SLANDS
the company/firm 15 |

registered @

If applicable, the

registration number | 219376

CHFPOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

E Corporate secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as corporate secretary ©1f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box of your authority is limited, please
: provide a brief description of the
Extent of authonity O Lmited © hirmited authonty in the box below
@tf you have indicated that you are
Unlimited not authonised to act alene but only

jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of imited the person(s) with whom you are
a|_‘|1j"|c'r|'[yr if apphcable authonsed to act below

l Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone
Jointly ®

If applicable, name(s) |ANTHONY SETHILL
of person(s) with

whom you are JONATHAN APPS
acting jomntly RICHARD STEEVES

CHFPQODO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

&

Director details @

Use this section to hst all the directars of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page 1f necessary

Full forename(s)

’ANTHO NY IAN

Surname |SETHILL

Former name{s)® ‘

Country/State of

residence © UK

Nationality BRITISH

Date of burth |¢2 W WIT I?[gly—é-l?
Busiess occupation | CEO

{if any) @

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corpovate dector details.

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for bustness purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

@ Business occupation
If you have 2 business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director's service address®

Building name/number |137

Street

‘EUSTON ROAD

|
Post town | LONDON
CountyRegon — [{ GNDON
Postcode WI_V‘TITITITF rr
Country ’UK

@ Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usuval residential
address.

1f you provide your residential
address here it will appear an the
pubhic record

CHFPOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director's autharity

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box

Extent of authority

O Limited @
Unlimited

Description of limited
authonty, if applicable

@ f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s imited, please
provide a brief descriptron of the
limited authonity in the box below

®If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
ointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

I Are you authonsed to act afone or jointly? Please tick one box authonised to act below

Alone

O lontlye@
If applicable, name(s) ,
of person(s) with
whom you are I
acting jaintly |

CHFPOOO

0512 Verston 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

full forename(s)

'JONATHAN MICHAEL CHARLES

Surname

|aPPS
Former name({s) &
Country/State of
residence @ UK
Nationality | BRITISH
Date of birth ["2 FG’ ‘TE W’?E’T
Business occupation r CFO

{if any) ©

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1 G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have heen used for busiess
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
if you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave bank

Director’s service address @

Building name/number | 137

Street |EU STON ROAD
|
Post town |LONDON
County/Region | LONDON
Postcode WIW,T ITIT[A—I—_I—
Country UK

@ Service address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residentral
address here 1t will appear on the
public recard

CHFPOOD
05/12 Version 5 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box

Extent of authonty

O Limited ©
Unlimited

Description of hmited
authonity, if applicable

|

l Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

1 Alone
O Jonntly @

i applicable, name(s)
of person(s} with
whom you are
acting jointly

©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s hmited, please
provide a bnief descnphion of the
himited authonty in the box below

B If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but enly
jontly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authonsed to act below

CHFPOOD
0512 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

F |

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forenamefs} Martin Peter

Surname Knight

Former name(s} @

Country/State of

residence & UK

Nationality | BRITISH

Date of brth Fofs [ofa [1s[ale

Business occupation l CFO

{if any) @

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1 G5 to enter
corporate direcior details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes i the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

O Country/State of residence
This 15 in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

©Q Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave hlank

Director’s service address®

Building namefnumber | 137

Street |EUSTON ROAD
|
Post town |LONDON
County/Regon || ONDON
Pastcode WIWIT |_2—|T|T’_|7
Country UK

@ Service address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public recard This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOO0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonity as director Please tick one box

Extent of authonty

O umited ©
Unlimited

Description of imited
authonty, if applicable

’ Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

M Alone
O lonty @

If apphcable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acung jointly

©If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s limited, please
provide a brief deseription of the
limited authority in the box below

@ 1f you have ind:cated that you are
not authonsed to act atone but only
|ointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s} with whom you are
authonsed to act below

CHFPROO
05/12 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

m Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s) IChrlstOpher Michael

Surname ' Batterham
Former name{s) @

Country/State of

restdence & uK
Nationality IERlTISH

Date of birth I"_Z—E ﬁﬁ Fﬁﬁ’?

© Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director detarls

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

€ Country/State of residence
This 1s 1n respect of your usual
residentral address as stated in
Section F3

O Business accupation
If you have a business occupation,

B please enter here If you do not,
usiness accupation Director please leave blank

(if any) @

Director’s service address®

Building namefnumber R’J @ Service address
This 15 the address that will appear

Street IEUSTO N ROAD on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residentiat

r address

Past town IE)NDON If you provide your residentsal
address here 1t will appear on the

County/Region |LON DON pubhic record

Postcode |N|W|1|2IA Al

Country UK

CHFPOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box

Extent of authority

O Umited @
Unhmited

Description of limited
autharity, 1if applicable

@if you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty is imed, please
provide a bref description of the
hmited authority in the box below

@ If you have indicated that you are
not authornised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the namefs) of
the person(s) with whom you are

[ Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below

[ Alone

O Jonty @
If applicable, name(s) |
of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly

CHFPOOD

05/12 Version 5 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

m Director details ©

Use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page if necessary

Full forename(s) 'Hosseln

Surmame IYassale
Former name(s)®

Country/State of

residence © UK
Nationality ’ BRITISH

Date of birth I?U_l? ﬁlg nglql?

Business occupation ICEO Director

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1 G5 to enter
torporate director details

6 Former name(s)
Please prowide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes i the last 20 years
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

& Country/State of restdence
This 1s 1n respect of your usuat
residential address as stated in
Section F3

© Business accupation
If you have a business oceupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

{if any) @
Director’s service address ©
Bulding name/number |.| 37 @ Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
Street | EUSTON ROAD on the public record This does nat
have to be your usual residential
' address
Post town If you prowide your residential
|LON DON address here it will appear on the
County/Region I LONDON public record
s [w[ [2 [A[A[ ]
Country UK

CHFPOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box ©If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is [imited, please
Extent of authority provide a brief description of the
O Llnited @ limited authonity m the box belows
Unlimited 8if you have indicated that you are
rot authonsed to act alone but only
Descnption of hmited jaintly, please enter the name(s} of
authority, If applicable the personis} with whom you are
Y. app Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below
@ Alone
O Jontly®
If applicable, namefs)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

CHFPOOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Use this section to hst all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s) CHRISTOFER

Sumame TOUMAZOU

Former name(s)®

Country/State of

residence @ UK

Natlonallty BRITISH
d d m m ¥ 3

Date of birth IT)I? I?IT FTI?'?IT

Business occupation | Director

(if any) ©

@Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
torporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes In the last 20 years
Married women do rot need to give
former names unfess previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

@ Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do net,
please leave blank

Director’s service address ©

Building name/number |137

Street

IEU STON ROAD

|
Post town [LON DON
County/Region [LON DON
Postcode W W'T I?ITITT I_
Country UK

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear an the
public recard

CHFPOQD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as dwector Please tick one hox

Extent of authonty

O Limited @
Unlimited

Description of imited
authonty, if applicable

| Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone
O Jontlye

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authornity 1s imited, please
provide a brief description of the
hmited authonty in the box below

@If you have indicated that you are
nat authonised to act alane but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorsed to act below

CHFPODO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s)

|RICHARD MARTIN

Surname |sTEEVES
Farmer name(s)® |
|
C 1S f
e ux
Nationahity | CANADIAN
Date of birth |"2 !? WI? WI?IV_G_IT

Business occupation
(if any} @

I CEO Director

|

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here i you do not,
please leave blank

Director’'s service address®©

Building name/number |.| 37

Street |EUSTON ROAD
|
Post town | LONDON
County/Region | LONDON
Postcode | N !WITITFIT([_[_
Country UK

& 5ervice address
Thes 1s the address that will appear
on the pubkic record This does not
have to be your usual residentral
address

If you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director Please tick one box ©1f you have mndicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authonty o provide a brief description of the
O Lrted hmited authortty in the box below
Unlimited &1f you have indrcated that you are
not authonsed ta act alone but only
Description of hmited jointly, please enter the named(s) of
authornity, if applicable the person{s) with whom you are
. app | Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authorrsed to act helow
F  Alone
O Jontlye
If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly
CHFPODO

0512 Version 50
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UK establishment details

Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company’s
constitution with matenal delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No Go to Section H3
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H2

UK establishment
registration number

FECTT 7T

UK establishment
registration number

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company’s accounting
documents with matenal delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No GotoSection H3
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3

T

Sections H3 and H4 must be completed 1n all cases

Delivery of accounts and reports

Please state if the company intends to comply with accounting requirements
with respect to this estabhishment or in respect of another UK establishment @

In respect of this establishment Please go to Section H4

O Inrespect of another UK establishment Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4

UK establishment
registration number

JIERENEEE

O Please tick the appropriate box

CHFPOOOD
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Particulars of UK establishment ©

Please enter the name and address of the UK establishment

Name of establishment| TOUMAZ GROUP LTD

Building namefnumber | 137

Street | EUSTON ROAD
|
Post town | LONDON
County/Region l LONDON
e [N W[ [Z [A R [
Country I

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the
establishment

Date establishment EE Igi"j_T E[gﬁ‘l’g

opened

Business carnied on at

the UK establishment | HEAD OFFICE

9 Address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record

CHFPOOO
0512 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6

Permanent representative

Please enter the name and address of every person authonised to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company
Please complete Sections J1-}4

Full forename(s)

|JONATHAN MICHEAL CHARLES

Surname

APPS

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need 1o enter more details

Permanent representative’s service address ©

Building name/number | 137

Street

| EUSTON ROAD
|
Post town l LONDON
County/Region | LONDON
Postcode [—I\TWI—“_ ITFF?F
Country |

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public recard

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative
Please hck one box

Extent of authanty

O Umited @
Unhmited

Description of imited
authonty, if applicable

Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone
O Jontly @

If apphcable, name(s)
of person(s) with
wham you are

acting jointly

|

|

81f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s imited, ptease
provide a brief descnption of the
limited authomity in the box below

©If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but enly
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the persen(s} with whom you are
authonised to act below

CHFPOOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6

Permanent representative

Flease enter the name and address of every person authonsed to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to hst all the permanent representatives of the company
Please complete Sections J1-14

Full forename(s)

[ANTHONY AN

Surname

SETHILL

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details

Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/number [ 137

Street | EUSTON ROAD
|
Post town | LONDON
County/Region | LonDON
Postcode WI_VV[T I?Fr‘;r[/
Country

@ Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
an the public record Thas does nat
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative
Please tick one box

Extent of authanty

O Lmited @
Unlimited

Description of mited
authornity, If applicable

| Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone
O Jontly®

If applicable, name(s}
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

|

O |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonity is imited, please
provide a brief descriptron of the
limited authonity in the box below

O1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but enly
Jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authonsed to act below

CHFPGOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 7 Person authorised to accept service

Does the company have any person(s) in the UK authorised to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?

2+ Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authonsed below
+No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 ‘Signature’

(] if there1s no such person, please tick this box

m Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this section to list all the persons’ authorised to accept service below
Please complete Sections K1-K2

Full forename(s) | ;oNATHAN MICHAEL CHARLES

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more detatls

Surname APPS

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Building name/number |137 @ Service address
This 15 the address that will appear

Street [EUSTON ROAD on the pubkic recard This does not
have to be your usual residential

| address Please note, a DX address

would not be acceptable

Post town |LONDON

County/Region 1 LONDON

ot [ [w[ 7 [2 [ [A] [

Country |UK

CHFPOQ0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 8 Signature

, This must be completed by alf companies

1am signing this form on behalf of the company

Signature Speatia

X z X

ThigAorm may be signed by
ector, 5 ; tat

CHFPOOD
05/12 Version 5 0



0S INOT

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Bﬁesenter information

Mportant information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House if there 1s a query
on the form The contact mformation you give will be
wisible to searchers of the public record

Centact nare

MARIE GRICE

Company rame

TOUMAZ HEALTHCARE [+ §

M 145 QLYMPIC AVENUE
|7MILT0N PARK

|

[ ABINGDON
| s OXON

= o X[ [ [+[s[Al_

Coutv OXON

Dx

IEF‘W"E
01235 438978

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

2 The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constitutional documents exactly
You have included a copy of the appropriate
correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if
appropnate

& You have included certified copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropnate

£ You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropnate
You have completed all of the company details in
Section B3 f the company has not regstered an
existing estabhishment

2’ You have complete detaiis for all company
secretaries and directors in Part 4 if the company
has not registered an existing estabhshment

{2’ Any addresses given must be a physical location
They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP {Legal Postin
Scotland) number
You have completed details for all permanent
representatives in Part 6 and persons authonised to
accept service in Part 7

'ou have signed the form

You have enclosed the correct fee

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the public record, apart from
information relating to usual residential
addresses

How to pay

A fee of £20 1s payable to Compantes House in
respect of a registration of an overseas company
Make cheques or postal orders payable to
"Companies House'

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return It to the appropriate address below:

England and Wales

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardhff

Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

Northern Ireland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast 1

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address below

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE

nFurther information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquines@companteshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This form has been provided free of charge by Companies House

CHFPOOO
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THE COMPANIES LAW (2004 REVISION)

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

TOUMAZ HOLDINGS LIMITED

The name of the Company 1s TOUMAZ HOLDINGS LIMITED'

The Registered Office of the Company will be stuated at the offices of Walkers SPV Limited, Walker
House, Mary Street, PO Box 908GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands or at such
other location as the Directors may from time to time determine

The objects for which the Company i1s established are unrestricted and the Company shall have full
power and authority to carry out any object not prohibited by any law as provided by Section 7{4) of
the Companies Law (2004 Revision)

The Company shall have and be capable of exercising all the functions of a natural person of full
capacity rrespective of any queston of corporate benefit as provided by Section 27(2) of the
Companies Law (2004 Revision)

Nothing in the preceding sections shall be deemed to permit the Company to carry on the business of
a Bank or Trust Company without being licensed in that behalf under the provisions of the Banks &
Trust Companies Law (2004 Rewision), or to carry on insurance Business from withun the Cayman
Islands or the business of an Insurance Manager, Agent, Sub-agent or Broker without being icensed
in that behalf under the provisions of the Insurance Law (2003 Rewision), or to carry on the business
of Company Management without being icensed in that behalf under the prowisions of the Companies
Management Law (2003 Revision)

The Company will not trade in the Cayman Istands with any person, firm ar corporation except in
furtherance of the business of the Company carned on outside the Cayman Islands, provided that
nothing in this section shall be construed as to prevent the Company effecting and concluding
contracts in the Cayman Islands, and exercising in the Cayman Islands all of its powers necessary for
the carrying on of s business outside the Cayman Islands

The liability of the members 1s himited to the amount, If any, unpaid on the shares respectively held by
them

The capttal of the Company 1s £10,000,000.00 divided into 4,000,000,000 shares of a nominal or par
value of £0.0025 (one quarter of a penny) each provided always that subject to the prowvisions of the
Companies Law (2004 Revision) and the Articles of Association the Company shall have power to
redeem or purchase any of its shares and to sub-divide or consolidate the saud shares or any of them
and to issue all or any part of its capital whether oniginal, redeemed, increased or reduced with or
withaut any preference, pnority or special privilege ar subject to any postponement of nghts or to any
conditions or restnictions whatsoever and so that unless the conditions of 1ssue shall otherwise

1 Name changed from Nanoscience Iac by special resolution dated 26 September 2008

1 215350013



expressly provide every issue of shares whether stated to be Ordinary, Preference or othenwise shall
be subject to the powers on the part of the Company hereinbefore provided

The Company may exercise the power contained in Section 226 of the Companies Law (2004
Rewvision) to deregister in the Cayman [slands and be registered by way of continuation n some other

junsdiction

2 215350013



THE COMPANIES LAW (2004 REVISION)

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

TOUMAZ HOLDINGS LIMITED

TABLE A

The Regulations contained or incorporated in Table 'A" in the First Schedule of the Companies Law (2004
Rewvision) shall not apply to thuis Company and the following Articles shall compnse the Articles of Association
of the Company

1

INTERPRETATION
In these Articles
*Auditors” means the auditors for the time being and from time to time of the Company,
*Companies Law” means the Companies Law (2004 Rewsion) of the Cayman Islands,
“Depositary” means any person who I1s a member in the company by wirtue of its holding sharas in
the company as trustee for those individuals who have elected to hold shares in the company In

dematerialised form through depositary interests,

*Directors” and "Board of Directors” means the Directors of the Company for the time being, oras
the case may be, the Diregtors assembled as a Board or as a committee thereof,

"Disclosure Notice" has the meaning set out in Article 46,

'LLondon Stock Exchange” means the London Stock Exchange plc or any successor body carrying
on its funclions,

"Member" means a person whose name 1s entered in the Register of Members and includes each
subscriber to the Memorandum of Association pending the 1ssue to him of the subscnber share or
shares,

"Memorandum of Assoclation” means the Memorandum of Association of the Company, as
amended and re-stated from time to lime,

“"Ordinary Resolution” means a resoiution
(a} passed by a simple majonty of such Members as, being entitled to do so, vote In person or,
where proxies are allowad, by proxy at a general meeting of the Company and where a poll is

taken regard shall be had in compuling a majonity to the number of votes to which each
Member 15 entitled, or

3 215350013



(b) approved 1in wnting by all of the Members entitled to vote at a general mesting of the
Company in one or more instruments each signed by one or more of the Members and the
effective date of the resolution so adopted shall be the date on which the insirument, or the
last of such instruments If more than one, 15 executed,

"paid up” means paid up as to the par value and any premium payable in respect of the 1ssue of any
shares and includes credited as paid up,

"Register of Members" means the register to be kept by the Company in accordance with Section 40
of the Companies Law,

*Beal" means the Common Seal of the Company (If adopted) including any facsimile thereof,
"share" means any share i the capital of the Company, including a fraction of any share,
"signed” includes a signature or representation of a signature affixed by mechanical means;

"Special Resolution" means a resolution passed in accordance with Section 80 of the Companes
Law, being a resolution

{a) passed by a majonity of not less than 75 per cent of such Members as, being entitled to do
so, vole n person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of the
Company of which notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a Special
Resolution has been duly given and where a poll is taken regard shall be had in computing a
majority to the number of votes to which each Member is entitled, or

{b} approved 1n wnbing by alf of the Members entitled to vote at a ganeral meeting of the
Company in one or more instruments each signed by one or more of the Members and the
effective date of the Special Rasolution so adopted shall be the date on which the instrument
or the last of such instruments if more than one, 15 execuled

In these Aricles, save where the context requires otherwise

(a} words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa,

{b) words importing the masculine gender only shall include the femuune gender,

(c} words importing persons only shall include companies or associations or bodies of persons,
whether corporate or not,

{d} "may" shall ba construed as permissive and "shall" shall be construed as imperative,
{e) references to £ 1s a reference 10 the lawful currency of the United Kingdom, and
H references to a statuiory enaciment shall include reference to any amendment or re-

enactment thereof for the tme being in force

Subject to the last two preceding Articles, any words defined in the Companies Law shall, if not
inconsistent with the subject or context, bear the same meaning In these Articles

PRELIMINARY

The busimess of the Company may be commenced as soon after iIncorporation as the Directors see
fit

4 215356013
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"

12

The registered office of the Company shall be at such address in the Cayman [slands as the Directors
shall from time to tme determme The Company may n addition establish and maintain such other
offices and places of business and agencies in such places as the Directors may from time to tme
determine

SHARES

Subject as otherwise provided In these Articles, and without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of 1ssued shares (including, without imitation, any pre-emptive nghls 1n
respect of new share 1ssues), all shares for the time being and from time to time unissued shall be
under the control of the Directors, and may be re-designated, allotted or disposed of in such manner,
to such persons and on such terms as the Direclors in their absolute discrelion may think fit

The Company may msofar as may be permiited by law, pay a commussion o any person in
constderation of his subscribing or agreeing to subscribe whether absciutely or conditonally for any
shares Such commissions may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the lodgement of fully or partly
pald-up shares or partly n one way and partly in the other  The Company may also on any issue of
shares pay such brokerage as may be lawful

VARIATION OF RIGHTS ATTACHING TO SHARES

If at any time the share capital 1s divided into different classes of shares, the nights attaching to any
class (uniess otherwise provided by the terms of 1ssue of the shares of that class) may be varied or
abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of 75 per cent of the 1ssued shares of that class,
or with the sanction of a resolution passed by at least a 75 per cent majonty of the holders of shares
of the class present in person or by proxy at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the class To every such separate general meeling the provisions of these Articles relating {0
genaral meetings of the Company shatl mutabis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum
shall be at least one person holding or representing by proxy at least one-third of the 1ssued shares of
the class and that any holder of shares of the class present in person or by proxy may demand a poll

The nghts conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class Issued with preferred or other nghts
shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be
deemed fo be vaned or abrogated by the creation or 1ssue of further shares ranking pari passu
therewith or the redemption or purchase of shares of any class by the Company

CERTIFICATES

Every person whose name 1s entered as a Member n the Register of Members shall, without
payment, be entitled to a certificate in the form determined by the Directors Such certificate may be
under the Seal All certificates shall specify the share or shares held by that person and the amount
paid up thereon, provided that in respect of a share or shares held jointly by several persons the
Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a
share to one of several joint holders shali be sufficient detivery to all

If a share certificate 1s defaced, lost or destrayed it may be renewed on such terms, If any, as to
ewidence and indemnily as the Directors think fit

FRACTIONAL SHARES

The Directors may 1ssue frachons of a share of any class of shares, and, ff so issued, a fraction of a
share (calculated to three decimal points) shall be subject to and carry the corresponding fraction of
habikties {(whether with respect to any unpaid amount thereon, contribution, calls or otherwise),
Imitations, preferences, privileges, quahlfications, restrictions, nghts (including, without mitation,
voting and participation nghts) and other attnbutes of a whole share of the same class of shares
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14

15

16

17

18

LIEN

The Company shall have a first prionty hien and charge on every partly paid share for all moneys
{whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed ime in respect of that share, and the
Company shall also have a first priority lien and charge on all partly paid shares standing registered in
the name of a Member (whether held solely or jontly with another person) for ail moneys presently
payable by hum or his estate to the Company, but the Directors may at any time declare any share to
be wholly or in part exempf from the provisions of this Article The Company's lien, if any, on a share
shall extend to aif distnbutions payable thereon

The Company may sell, In such manner as the Directors i therr absolute discretion think fit, any
shares on which the Company has a hen, but no sale shall be made uniess an amount in respect of
which the lien exists is presently payable nor until the expiration of 14 days after a notice in writing,
slating and demanding payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the len exists asis
presently payable, has been given to the registered holder for the time being of the share, or the
persons entitled thereto by reason of hus death or bankruptcy

For giving effect to any such sale the Directors may authonse some persen to transfer the shares sold
to the purchaser thereof The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares compnised in
any such transfer and he shall not be bound to see (o the application of the purchase money, nor shalk
his title to the shares be affected by any irregulanty or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the
sale

The proceeds of the sale after deduction of expenses, fees and commusston incurred by the Company
shall be receved by the Company and applied in payment of such part of the amount in respect of
which the lien exists as 1s presently payable, and the residue shall (subject 1o a like lien for sums not
presently payable as existed upon the shares prior to the sale) be paid to the person entitled to the
shares at the date of the sale

PRE-EMPTION

Unless otherwise approved by Ordinary Resolution the Company shall not allot shares for cash
consideration on any terms unless

(a) the Directors have made an offer to each person who holds shares of the same class to allot
o him on the same or maore favourable terms such proportion of those shares that 1s as
nearly as prachcable (fractions being disregarded) equal to the proportion that the relevant
person's existing holding of shares of the same class represents of all the 1ssued shares of
that class,

{b} the period, which shall not be less than 21 clear days, dunng which any offer referred toin
Article 17a may be accepted has expired or the Company has received notice of the
acceptance or refusal of every offer made,

(c) the provisions of clauses 17{a} and (b) do not apply o the allotment of secunties which
would, apart from a renunciation or assignment of the right to therr allotment, be held under
an employees’ share scheme ?

An offer by the Directors referred to in Article 17 shall, subject to Articles 19 and 20, be made to a
holder of shares either personally or by sending it by post {that 1s to say, pre-paying and posting a
letter containing the offer} to him or to his registered address or to such other address nofified by the
relevant holder from time to ime  If sent by post, the offer shall be deemed o be made at the time at
which the |etter would be delivered in the ordinary course of post

2 Article 17 inserlec Dy special resolulion daled 2 November 2005
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20

21

22,

23

24

25

26

27

28

Where shares are held by two or more persons jointly, the offer may be made to the joint holder first
named in the Register of Members In respect of the shares

In the case of a holder's death or bankruptcy, the offer referred to in Article 17 may be made

(a) by sending it by post in a pre-paid letter addressed to the persons claiming to be entitled to
the shares in consequence of the death or bankruptcy by name, or by the tile of
representatives of the deceased, or trustee of the bankrupt, or by any like description, at the
address in the United Kingdom supphied by those claiming to da so, or

{b} {until such an address referred to in Article 20{a) has been supphed) by giving the nolice In
any manner in which it might have been if the death or bankruptcy had not occurred

CALLS ON SHARES

The Directors may from time to bme make calls upon the Members in respect of any moneys unpaid
on their partly paid shares, and each Member shall (subject to recewing at least 14 days nolice
specify:ing the time or times of payment) pay to the Company al the time or times s0 specified the
amount called on such shares

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay calls in respect thereof

If 2 sum called in respect of a share s not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof,
the person from whom the sum 1s due shall pay interest upon the sum at the rate of exght per centum
per annum from the day appointed for the payment thereof to the time of the actual payment, but the
Directors shall be at iberty to waive payment of that interest wholly or in part

The provisions of these Articles as to the liability of jont holders and as te payment of interest shail
apply 1n the case of non-payment of any sum which, by the terms of issue of a share, becomes
payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the amount of the share, or by way of premwum, as If
the same had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and notfied

The Directors may make arrangements on the 1ssue of partly paid shares for a difference between the
Members, or the particular shares, in the amount of calls to be paid and in the times of payment

The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any Member willing to advance the same all or any
parl of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon any partly paid shares held by him, and upon all or any
of the moneys so advanced may {untl the same would, but for such advance, become presently
payable) pay interest at such rate (not exceeding wathout the sanction of an Ordinary Resoiution, eight
per cenl per annum) as may be agreed upon between the Member paying the sum in advance and
the Directors

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

If a Member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call in respecl of partly pad shares on the day
appointed for payment, the Directors may, at any ime thereafter during such time as any part of such
call or instalment remamns unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or
instalment as i1s unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued

The notice shall name a further day (not earlier than the expiration of 14 days from the date of the
notice) on or before which the payment required by the notice 1s to be made, and shall state that nthe
event of non-payment at or before the tme appointed the shares in respect of which the call was
made will be hable to be ferfeited
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29

30

3

32

33

34

35

36

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not comphied with, any share in respect of
which the notice has been given may at any time thereafter, before the payment required by notice
has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect

A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of an such terms and in such manner as the
Directors think fit, and at any time before a sale or disposition the forfeiture may be cancelled on such
terms as the Directors think fit

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a Member in respect of the forfeited
shares, but shall, notwithstanding, remain hiable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date
of forfeture were payable by him ta the Company in respect of the shares forfeited, but his liability
shall cease if and when the Company receives payment in full of the amount unpaid on the shares
forfeited

A statutory declaration in writing that the declarant 1s a Director, and that a share has been duly
forfeted on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts in the
declaration as agalnst all persons claiming to be entitled to the share

The Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for a share on any sale or disposition
thereof pursuant to the provisions of these Articles as to forfeiture and may execute a transfer of the
share m favour of the person o whom the share s sold ot disposed of and that person shall be
registered as the holder of the share, and shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money, If any, nor shall tus btle to the shares be affected by any irregulanty or invalidity in the
proceedings in reference to the disposition or sale

The provisions of these Articles as to forfeiture shall apply i the case of non-payment of any sum
which by the terms of Issue of a share becomes due and payable, whether on account of the amount
of the share, or by way of premium, as if the same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and
notified

TRANSFER OF SHARES
The instrument of transfer, if any, must be signed by or on behalf of the transferor and, in the case of
a partly paid share, by or on behalf of the transferee The transferor will be deemed to remain the
holder of the share until the name of the transferee 1s entered in the register of Members 1n respect of
it

The Directors may, In their absolute discretion and without giving any reason, refuse to register any
transfer of shares unless

(a) It 1510 respect of a fully paid share,

(b) 1t1s duly stamped, I1s deposited at the office or such other place as the Directors may appoint
and s accompanied by the certificate, for the shares to which it relates and such other
evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make
the transfer,

{c) it 1s In respect of only one class of share,

{d} it 15 1n favour of not more than four transferees except in the case of executors or trustees of
a deceased Member, and

(e} 115 In respect of a share on which the Company does not have a lien in respect of which the
Company has served a notice pursuant to Aricle 14
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In exceptional circumslances approved by the Landon Stock Exchange, the Directors may refuse to
registar any transfer of shares 1o which Article 36 would otheraise apply, provided that their refusal
does not disturb the market

if the Directors refuse to reqister a transfer of any shares, they must, within two months after the date
on which the transfer was lodged with the Company, send to the transferor and the transferee notice
of the refusal

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periads as the Directars
may, Intherr absolute discretion, from time to time determine, provided always that such registration
shall not be suspended for more than 30 days in any year

All instruments of transfer which are registered shall be retained by the Company, but any instrument
of transfer which the Directors decline to register shall (except in any case of fraud) be returned to the
person depositing the same

Nothing in these Articles precludes the Directors from recognising a renunciation of the allotment of
any share by the allottee in favour of some other person

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The legal perscnal representative of a deceased sole holder of a share shall be the only person
recognised by the Company as having any title to the share  In the case of a share registerad in the
name of two or more holders, the survivors or survivor, or the legal personal representativas of the
deceased survvor, shall be the only person recognised by the Company as having any title to the
share

The Directors shali, subject aiways to the Comparnies Law and any other applcable laws and
regutations and the facilities and requirements of any relevant system concerned and these Articles,
have power to implement and/or approve any arrangements they may, in their absolute discretion,
think fit in relation to the evidencing of title to and transfer of interests in shares in the capital of the
Company in the form of depositary interests or similar interests, instruments or securtties, and to the
extent such arrangements are so Implemenied, no provision of these Articles shall apply or have
effect to the extent that it 15 In any respect inconsistent with the holding or transfer thersof or the
shares in the capitat of the Company represented thereby The Directors may from time to ime take
such actions and do such things as they may, i their absolute discretion, think fit in relation to the
operation of any such arrangements

Any person becoming entitied to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Member
shall upon such evidence being produced as may from bime to time be required by the Directors, have
the night ether to be registered as a Member In respect of the share or, instead of being registered
tumself, to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or bankrupt person could have made,
but the Directars shall, in exther case, have the same nght to decline or suspend registration as they
would have had in the case of a transfer of the share by the deceased or bankrupt person before the
death or bankruptcy

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of the holder shall be
entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the
registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a Member in
respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it {o exercise any nght conferred by membership in
refation to meetings of the Company

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SHARES

Disclosure Notice
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(a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

The company may by notice in writing {Disclosure Notice) require a person whom the
company knows or has reasonable cause to believe to be or, at any time during the 3 years
immediately preceding the date on which the notice 1s issued, to have been interested in
shares comprised In the company's relevant share capital

(i} to confirm that fact or {(as the case may be) to indicate whether or not it1s the case,
and
() where he holds or has dunng that time held an interest in shares so compnsed, to

give such further information as may be required in accordance with the following
paragraph 486(b)

A Disclosure Notice may require the person to whom 1t I1s addressed

{1} to give particulars of his own past or present interest in shares comprised in relevant
share capital of the company (held by him at any time dunng the 3-year period
immediately preceding the date on which the notice 15 1ssued),

() where the interest 1s a present interest and any other interest in the shares subsists
or, in any case, where another interest in the shares subsisted dunng that 3-year
pericd at any ume when his own interest subsisted, to give {so far as lies within his
knowledge) such particulars with respect to that other interest as may be required by
the Disclosure Notice,

{1} where his interest 1s a past interest, to give {so far as lies within his knowledge}
particulars of the identity of the person who held that interest immediately upon his
ceasing to hold it

The particulars referred to in paragraph 46(b) include patticulars of the identity of persons
interested n the shares in queslion and of whether persons interested in the same shares
are or were parties to any agreement relating o the acquisthon of shares in the company or
to any agreement or arrangement relating to the exercise of any nights conferred by the
holding of the shares

A Dusclosure Notice shall require any information given in response to the notice to be given
i writing within such reasonable time as may be specified in the nolice

This Article 46 applies in relation to a person who has or previously had, or 1s or was entitled
to acquire, a night to subscnbe for shares in the company which would on issue be comprised
in relevant share capital of the company as it applies in relation to a person who 1s or was
interested in shares so comprised, and references above in thus Article 46 to an interest in
shares so comprised and 1o shares so compnsed are to be read accordingly in any such
case as including respectively any such nght and shares which would on ssue be so
compnsed

if a Disclosure Nolice is given to a person appearing to be interested in any shares, a copy will at the
same time be given to the holder of those shares but the accidental omission to do so or the non-
receipt by the member will not prejudice the operation of Articles 49 to 53, which are without prejudice
{o the provisions of Article 48

Subject to the provisions of Arlicle 54, where a Disclosure Notice 1s served by the company on a
person wha s or was interested in shares of the company and that person fails to give the company
any information required by the notice vathin the time specified in it, the company may apply to the
court for an order directing that the shares in question be subject to such restrictions as the court
believes appropnate in the circumstances
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Ifa member or any person appeanng to be interested in any shares held by a member has been duly
served wrth a Disclosure Notice and fails fully to comply wath It after 14 days from the date of service
of the Disclosure Notice, the provisions of Articles 51 and 52 will apply  The restrictions imposed by
those Asticles in relation 1o any shares will continue until a relevant event occurs in relation to those
shares and will cease immediately it does so  For this purpose, a relevant event is either of the
followrng

(a) the default 1s remedied to the satisfaction of the company, or

(b) the shares are registered mn the name of the purchaser or offeror, or that of his nominee,
pursuant to an arm's length transfer, as defined in Article 55(a)

Any dividends withheld pursuant to Article 52(b) will be paid to the member as soon as practicable
after the restrictions contained in Article 52 lapse

Pursuant to Article 49 and subject to Arbcle 53, and unless the directors otherwise determing, a
member who has a holding of less than 0 25 per cent of any class of shares, will not be entitfed in
respect of the shares held by him, whether or not referred to in the Disclosure Notice, to attend and
vote at a general meeting either personally or by proxy

Pursuant lo Aricle 49 and subject to Article 53 and unless the directors otherwise determine, a
member who has a holding of at least 0 25 per cent of any class of shares will not be entitled in
respect of the shares held by him, whether or not referred to In the Disclosure Notice

{a} to attend and vote at a general meeting etther personally or by proxy,
{b) to receve any dividend payable in respect of such shares, or
{c) subjsct ko Article 54, to transfer or agree to transfer any of such shares, or any nghts in them

The restrctions m Articles 51 and 52 are without prejudice to the nght of either the member holding
the shares concerned or, If different, the beneficial owner of those shares, to sell or agree to seéll them
pursuant to an arm's length transfer

Where a Disclosure Notice 1s served on a Depositary, and the Depostitary fails, through no fault of its
own, to comply for any reason with the Disclosure Nolice, the provisions of Articles 48 to 53 will onty
be implemented by the company i relation to those shares in the company in respect of which there
has been a failure, and will not be Implemented in relation to any other shares in the company held by
the Depositary and

{a) the company will not apply to any court for an order preventing the shares held by the
Depositary in respect of which there has been a falure from beng transferred by the
Depostary to the relevant bengficial holder or holders of such shares in the company. and

(b} the Depositary may transfer or agree to transfer the shares in respect of which there has
been a failure, or any nights in them to the relevant beneficial holder or holders of such shares
in the company

For the purposes of Articles 46 to 53

{a) an arm's length transfer in relation to any shares I1s a transfer pursuant to
)] a sale of those shares to a bona fide unconnected third party on a recognised
nvestment exchange, or on any stock exchange on which the shares are normally
traded, or
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(o)

(1) a takeover offer for the company, being an offer to acquire all the shares, or all the
shares of any class or classes 1n the company (other than the shares which are the
date of the offer are already held by the offeror), and

the company will be entitled to treat any persons as appearning to be interested in any shares
if

{1} the member holding such shares or any person who is or may be mnterested in such
shares either fails to respond to a Disclosure Notice or has given to the company a
nobfication pursuant to a Disclosure Notice which in the opinion of the directors fails
to establish the identities of those interested In the shares and i, after taking into
account such nabfication and any other relevant notification pursuant to a Disclosure
Notice, the company knows or has reasonable cause to believe that the person in
guestion 15 or may be interested in the shares, or

(n} that person, not baing the member, 1s interested in those shares for the purposes of
Article 46

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution increase the share capital by such sum,
to be divided into shares of such classes and amount, as the resolution shali prescnbe

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution

(a)

(b)

(c)

{d}

consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of a larger amount than tts
existing shares,

convert all or any of its paid up shares into stock and reconvert that stock into paid up shares
of any denomination,

subdivide its existing shares, or any of them into shares of a smalier amount provided that in
the subdwision the proportion between the amount paid and the amount, if any, unpaid on
each reduced share shall be the same as it was in case of the share from which the reduced
share 1s dernved,

cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or
agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amaount of its share capital by the amount
of the shares so cancelled

The Company may by Special Resolution reduce its share capital and any capital redemption reserve
It any manner authorised by law

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

Subject to the prowisions of the Companies Law, the Company may

(a)

{b}

{c)

issue shares on terms that they are to be radeemed or are Irable to be redeemed at the
option of the Company or the Member on such terms and in such manner as the Directors
may, before the tssue of such shares, detanmline,

purchase its own shares (including any redeemable shares) on such terms and i such
manner as the Directors may determine and agree with the Member, and

make a payment in respect of the redemption or purchase of its own shares otherwise than
out of profits or the proceeds of a fresh 1ssue of shares
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Any share in respect of which notice of redemption has been given shall not be entitled to paricipate
in the profits of the Company m respect of the penod after the date specified as the date of
redemption in the notice of redemption

The redemption or purchase of any share shall not be deemed to give rise to the redemption or
purchase of any other share

The Directors may when making payments in respect of redemption or purchase of shares, if
authonsed by the terms of issue of the shares being redeemed or purchased or with the agreement of
the holder of such shares, make such payment ether in cash or in specie

FIXING RECORD DATE

The Drreclors may fix in advance a date as the record date for any determination of those Members
that are entitied to receive notice of, attend ar vote at a mesting of the Members and for the purpose
of determining those Members that are entitied to receve payment of any dvidend the Directors may,
at or within 90 days prior to the date of declaration of such dwidend fix a subsequent date as the
record date for such deterrmination

If no record date 1s fixed for the determination of those Members entitled to receve notice of, attend
or vote at a meeting of Members or those Members that are entifled to receive payment of a dividend,
the date on which notice of the meeting is posted or the date on which the resolution of the Directors
declaring such dividend 1s adopted, as the case may be, shall be the record date for such
determination of Members When a determination of those Members that are entitled to receive notice
of, attend or vole al a meseting of Members has been made as provided in this Article, such
determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof

GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting wilf be heid at such time and place or places as the Directors may
determine

All general meetings other than annual general meelings are called extraordinary general meetings
The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a general meeting of the Company

General meelings shall aiso be convened on the watten requisition of any Member or Members
entitled to aftend and vote at general meetings of the Company whe hold not less than 10 per cent of
the paid up voling share capital of the Company deposited al the registered office of the Company
specifying the objects of the meeting for a dale no later than 21 days from the date of deposit of the
reguisition signed by the requisitionists, and if the Directors do not convene such meeting for a date
not later than 45 days after the date of such depostt, the requisitionists themselves may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as thal in which general meetings may
be convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Diractors to convene the general meeting shall be rembursed to them by the
Company

If at any tme there are no Direclors, any two Members {or If there 1s only one Membar then that

Member) enlitted to vote at general meetings of the Company may convene a general meeling in the

same manner as nearly as possible as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors
NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting for the passing of a Special
Resolution must be called by at least 21 days' notice, and all ather general meetings must be called
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by at least 14 days' notice The notice 1s exclusive of the day on which it 1s served, or deemed fo be
served, and of the day for which it 1s given

Every notice must be in wnting and specify the principal place, the day and the time of meeting, and,
in the case of special business, the general nature of such business, and in the case of an annual
general meeting, must specify the meeting as such

In the case of any general meeting the Board of Directors may (notwithstanding the speafication in
the notice of the general meeting) make arrangements for simultaneous attendance and participation
at other places by Members and proxies entitied 1o attend the general meeting but excluded from the
pnncipal place Such arrangements for simuitaneous attendance at the meeting may include
arrangements regarding lthe level of altendance at the ather places but they must operate so that any
Members and proxies excluded from attendance at the principal place are able to attend at one of the
other places For the purpose of all other provisions of these Articles any such meeting will be treated
as heng held and taking place al the principal plface So as to faciditate the orgamsation and
admirustration of any general meeting to which such arrangements apply, the Board of Directors may
arrange for the 1ssue of tickets, on a bass intended to afford to all Members and proxies entitled to
attend the meeting an equal opportunity of being admitted to the principal place, or Impose some
other random means of selection or otherwise as it, in {s absolute discretion, considers appropriate

The Board of Directors may from tme to tme vary any such arrangements or make new
arrangements in therr place and the entittement of any Member or proxy to attend a general meeting
at the principal place will be subject to such arrangements as are, for the time being, in force whether
stated In the notice of the meeting to apply to that meeting or neolified to the Members concerned
subsequent to the despatch of the notice of the meeting

Notices must be given in the manner stated in these Articles to all the Members, ather than those who
under the provisions of these Articles or under the nghts attached to the shares held by them are not
entitled to receive the notice, and to the Auditors

Noteathstanding that it 1s called by shorter notice than that specified In Article 70, 2 meeting of the
Company 1s deemed to have been duly called if 1t is so agreed

{a) in the case of a meeting called as an annual generat meeting, by all the Members entitied to
attend and vote at it, or

{b) in the ¢ase of any other meeting, by a majonty in number of the Members having a right to
attend and vole at the meeling, being a majonty together holding not less than 85 per cent in
nominat value of the shares giving that nght

If the Board of Directors, in its absolute discretion, considers thatilis impractical or unreascnable for
any reason to hold a general meeting on the date or at the time or place spectfied in the notice calling
tha general meeting, it may postpone the general meeting to another date, time andfor place Inthat
event notice of the date, time and place of the postponed meeting will be placed in at least two
national newspapers In the United Kingdom Notice of the business to be transacted at such
postponed meeting will not be required

The accidental omission to give nolice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting by
any person entifled to recewve notice will not invaiidate the proceedings al thal meeting

In every notice calling a meeting of the Company or any class of the Members of the Company, there
will appear with reasonable prommence a statement that a Member entitled to attend and vote I1s
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote nstead of um, and that a proxy
need not also be a Member

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
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The Board of Directors may direct that Members or proxies wishing to attend any general meeting
must submut to such searches or other secunty arrangements or restnctions as the Board of Directors
constders appropriate in the circumstances and may, in its absolute discretion, refuse enfry to, or
gject from, such general meeting any Member or proxy whao falls to submit to such searches or
otherwise to comply with such secunly arrangements or restrictions

All business transacted at an extraordinary general meeting 1s deemed special

All business carned oul al a general meeting shall be deemed special with the exception of
sanchioning a ¢ividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheets, and any report of the
Directors or of the Company's auditars, the appointment and removal of Directors and the fixing of the
remuneration of the Company's auditors No special business shail be transacted al any general
meeting wathout the consent of all Members entitled to receve notice of that meeting unless notice of
such special business has been given in the notice convening that meeting

No business may be transacted at any general meeting unless a guorum 15 present Except as
otherwise provided in these Articles, two persons entitled to vote at the meeling each being a Member
or a proxy for a Member or a representative of a corporatton which 1s a Member, duly appointed as
such, are a quorum for alf purposes

If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meehing a quorum 1s not present, the meeting, If
convened upon lhe requisihon of Members, shall be dissolved In any other case it shall stand
adjourned to the sama day in the next week, at the same time and place, and f at the adjourned
meeting a quorum 1s nol present within half an hour from the bime apponted for the meeting the
Member or Members present and entifled to vote shall be a quorum

The chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors, or in his absence some cther Director norminated by
the chairman i writing, will preside as chairman at every general meeting of the Company, but if at
any meeting neither the charrman nor such other Director is present within 15 minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting, or if netther of them s withng to act as charman, the Directors
present may choose some Director present to be chairman, or if no Director 1s present, or if all the
Directors present decline to take the chair, the Members present may choose seme Member present
to be chairman

The chairman may with the consent of any general meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if
so directed by the meeting) adjourn a meeting from tme to time and from place to place, but no
business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfimished at the
meeting from which the adjournment took place  When a meeting ts adjourned for 14 days or more,
notice of the adjournad meeting shall be given as in the case of an ongmal meeting Save as
aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any nolice of an adjournment or of the business 1o be
transacted at an adjourned meeting

At any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting 1s decided on a show of hands,
unless before or upon the declaration of the result of the show of hands a poll 1s demanded

(a) by the charman, or

(b) by nat fewer than five Members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the
meeting, or

(c} by a Member or Members representing nat less than ane-tenth of the total voting nghts of all

the Members having the nght to vote at the meshing, or
{(d} by a Member or Members holding shares of the Company conferring a nght to vote at the

meeting, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than
one-tenth of the totaf sum paid up on all the shares conferring that nght
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Unless a poll1s so demanded, a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has been carnied, or
carmed unanimously or by a particular majority, or lost, or not carried by a particular majonty, and an
entry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the proceedings of general meetings of the
Company 15 conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes
recorded m favour of or against such resolution

The nstrument appoinking a proxy lo vole at a meeting 1s deemed also to confer authonty to demand
or join in demanding a polt and to vote on a poll on the election of a chairman and on a motion to
adjourn a meeting. For the purposes of Article 85, a demand by a person as proxy for a Member is
the same as a demand by the Member

If any votes are counted which cught not to have been counted or might have been rejected, or if any
votes are not counted which ought to have been counted, the error will not vitiate the resuilt of the
voting unless itis pointed cut at the same mesling, or at any adjournment of it, and it 1$ in the opinion
of the chairman of the meeting of sufficient magrnitude to viliate the result of the voling

In the case of a resolution duly proposed as a Spectal Resolution no amendment, other than an
amendment to correct a patent error, may be considered or voted upon  In the case of a resolution
duly proposed as an Ordinary Resolution, no amendment, other than an amendment to correct a
patent error, may be considered or voted upon uniess, either at least 48 hours prior to the time
appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such Ordinary Resclution 15 10 be
proposed notice in wnting of the terms of the amendment and intention o move it 1s lodged at the
office, or the charman, in his absolute discretion, decides that it may be considered or voted upon I
an amendment 1s proposed to any resolubion under consideration but is ruled out of order by the
chairman of the meeting the proceedings on the substantive resolution will net be invalidated by any
error In such ruling

Subject to the provisions of Articte 81, if a poliis duly demanded, it will be taken in such manner as
the chairman may direct, including the use of ballot or voting papers or tickets, and the result of a poll
wil be deemed to be the resolution of the mesting at which the poli was demanded The charrman
may, in the event of a poll, appoint scrutineers, who need not be Members, and may fix some place
and tme for the purpose of declanng the result of the poll

A poll demanded on the election of a charrman or on a question of adjournment must be taken
immediately A poll demanded on any other question must be taken immediately or at such time and
place as the charrman directs, not being more than 30 days from the date of the meeting or the
adjourned meeting at which the poll was demanded No notice need be given of a poll not taken
immediately f the time and place at which it1s to be {aken are announced at the meeting at which itis
demanded In any other case, at least seven days' notice must be given specifying the bime and place
at which the poll 1s to be taken

In the case of an egualty of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman of the
meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the pall is demanded, shall be entitled to
a second or casting vote

The demand for a poll will not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any
business other than the question on which the pell has been demanded

A demand for a poll may, before the poll 1s taken, be withdrawn bul only with the consent of the
chairman, and a demand so withdrawn will not be taken 1o have invalidated the result of a show of
hands declared befcre the demand was made If a poll 1s demanded before the declaration of the
resutl of a show of hands and the demand 1s duly withdrawn with the consent of the chairman, the
meeting will continue as If the demand had not been made

if the Directors wish to make this facility available to Members for a specific or all general meetings of
the Company, a Member may participate in any general meeting of the Company, by means of a
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telephone or similar communication equipment by way of which all persons participating 1 such
meeting can hear each other and such participation shall be deemed to constitute presence in person
at the meeting

VOTES OF MEMBERS

Subject to any rights and restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, on
a show of hands every Member prasenl in person and every person representing a Membar by proxy
shall at a general meeting of the Company have one vate and on a poll avery Member and every
person representing a Member by proxy shall have one vole for each share of which he or the person
represented by proxy 1s the holder

In the case of joint holders the vole of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy
shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the jont holders and for this purpose semonty shall
be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members

A Member of unsound mind, or 1n respect of whom an order has been made by any court having
wnsdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee, or other
personin the nalure of a commidtee appomnted by that court, and any such committee or other parsen
may vote by proxy

No Member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently
payable by him n respect of shares carrying the nght to vote held by him have been pad

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appomter or of his attomey
duly authorised in writing or, If the appolntor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authonsed A proxy need not be a Member

An instrument appomiing a proxy may be in any usual or commoen form or such other form as the
Directors may approve

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authonty to demand or join I
demanding a poll

A resolution in wnting signed by all the Members for the ime being entitled to receive notice of and to
attend and vote at general meetings (or being corporations by therr duly authensed representatives)
shall be as valid and effective as if the same had been passed at a general meeting of the Company
duly convened and held

CORPORATIONS ACTING BY REPRESENTATIVES AT MEETINGS

Any corporation which 1s a Member ar a Director may by resclution of its Directors or other governing
body autharise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company
or of any class of Members or of the Board of Directors or of a committee of Directors, and the person
so authonsed shall be entitied to exercise the same powers on behalf of the corporation which he
represents as that corporation could exercise If it were an indvidual Member or Director

DIRECTORS
The name of the first Director(s) shall either be determined in wiiling by a majority (or in the case ofa
sole subscriber that subscriber) of, or elected at a meeting of, the subscribers of the Memorandum of
Association

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution appoint any person to be a Director
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Subject to the provisions of these Articles, a Director shall hold office until such time as he1s removed
from office by the Company by Ordinary Resolution

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution from time to time fix the maximum and minimum number
of Drrectors to be appointed but unless such number 1s fixed as aforesaid the number of Directors
shall be unlimited

The remuneration of the Directors may be deterrined by the Board of Directors or by the Company
by Grdinary Resolution

There shall be no shareholding qualfication for Directors unless determined otherwise by the
Company by Ordinary Resolution

The Directors shalt have power at any time and from time to time to appoint a person as Director,
either as a result of a casual vacancy or as an additional Director, subject to the maximum number (if
any) imposed by the Company by Ordinary Resolution

ALTERNATE DIRECTCR

Any Director may in writing appoint another person to be his alternate to act in his place at any
meehng of the Directors at which he 1s unable to be present  Every such alternate shall be enlitled to
notice of meetings of the Directors and to attend and vote thereat as a Director when the person
appomnbing hum is not personally present and where he 1s a Director to have a separate vote on behalf
of the Director he is representing i addibion to his awn vote A Director may at any time in writing
revoke the appomtment of an aliernate appointed by him  Except as otherwise provided in these
Articles, an altermnate Director 1s deemed for all purposes to be an officer of the Company and 1s alone
responsible to the Company for his own acts and defaults, and he 1s not deemed to be the agent of or
for the Director appointing him  An alternate Director is not entitled to receive any remuneration from
the Company for his services as such but his remuneration 15 payable out of the remuneration
payable to the Direclor appointing him, and will consist of such part, if any, of the |atter's remuneration
as 15 agreed between them

Any Director may appoint any person, whether or not a Director, to be the proxy of that Director to
attend and vote on his behalf, in accordance with instructions given by that Director, or in the absence
of such instructions at the discretion of the proxy, at a meeting or meetings of the Directars which that
Director 1s unable to attend personally  The instrument appointing the proxy shall be inwriting under
the hand of the appointing Director and shall be m any usual or commmon form or such other form as
the Directors may approve, and must be lodged with the chairman of the meeting of the Directors at
which such proxy 1s to be used, or first used, pnor to the commencement of the meeting

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of the Comparues Law, these Articies and to any resclutions made in a
general meeting, the business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors, who may pay all
expenses incurred in setting up and registenng the Company and may exercise all powers of the
Company No resolution made by the Company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of
the Directors which would have been valid if that resolution had not been made

The Directors may from bme to time appoint any person, whether or not a Director to hold such office
in the Company as the Directors may think necessary for the admnistration of the Company,
including but not imited fo, the office of president, one or more vice-presidents, treasurer, assistant
treasurer, manager or controller, and for such term and 3t such remuneration (whether by way of
salary or commusston or participation in profits or partly in one way and partly in another), and with
such powers and duties as the Directors may think fit Any person so appointed by the Directors may
be removed by the Directors The Directors may also appoint one or more of therr number to the
office of managing director upon like terms, but any such appointment shall ipso facto determine if
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any managing director ceases from any cause to he a Director, or if the Company by Ordinary
Resolution resolves that tus tenure of office be terminated

The Directors may appoint a Secretary (and if need be an Assistant Secretary or Assistant
Secretanes) who shail hold office for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions and
with such powers as they think fit Any Secretary or Assistant Secretary so appomnted by the Directors
may be removed by the Directors

The Directors may delegate any of ther powers to committees consisting of such member or
members of therr body as they think fit, any commiitee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers
50 delegated conform to any regulations that may be imposed on il by the Directors

The Directors may from time to ime and at any time by power of attarney appoint any Company, firm
or person or body of persons, whether nominated directly or mdirectly by the Directors, to be the
attorney or attorneys of the Company for such purposes and with such powers, authonties and
discretion {not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for
such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any such power of attorney may
contain such provistons for the protection and convenence of persons dealing with any such attorney
as the Directors may think fit, and may also authonse any such attorney to delegate all or any of the
powers, authorifies and discretion vested in him

The Directors may from tme to time provide for the management of the affars of the Company in
such manner as they shail think fit and the provisions contained i the three next following Articles
shall not imit the general powers conferred by this Article

The Directors from time to tme and at any time may establish any committees, local boards or
agencles for managing any of the affarrs of the Company and may appoint any persons to be
members of such committees or local boards and may appomnt any managers or agents of the
Company and may fix the remuneration of any such persons

The Directors from time lo tme and at any time may delegate to any such committee, local board,
manager or agent any of the powers, authorities and discretions for the ime being vested in the
Directors and may aulhorise the members for the tme being of any such local board, or any of them
to fill any vacancies therein and to act notwithstanding vacancies and any such appointment or
delegation may be made on such terms and subject to such conditions as the Directors may think fit
and the Directors may al any time remove any person so appoeinted and may annul or vary any such
delegation, but no person dealing In good farith and without notice of any such annulment or vaniation
shall be affected thereby

Any such delegates as aforesaid may be authonsed by the Directors to subdefegate all or any of the
powers, authordies, and discretion for the time being vested in them

BORROWING POWERS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and {o mortgage or
charge its undertaking, property and uncalled capital or any part thereof, to 1ssue debentures,
debenture stock and other securities whenever morey s borrowed or as securnity for any debt, liability
or obligation of the Company or of any third parly

The Directors may secure or provide for the payment of any money to be borrowed or raised by a
martgage of or charge upon all or any part of the undertaking or property of the Company, both
present and future, and upen any capital remaining unpaid upen the shares of the Company whether
called up or not, or by any other security The Directors may confer upon any mortgagees or persons
in whom any debenture or secunty I1s vested such nghts and powers as they think necessary or
expedient They may vest any property of the Company in frustees for the purpose of secunng any
money so borrowed or raised and confer upon the frustees, or any receiver to be appointed by them,
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or by any debenture holder, such nghts and powers as the Directors may think necessary or
expedientin relation to the undertaking or property of the Company or its management or realisation
or the making, recewing, or enforaing of calls upon the Members in respect of unpaid capital, and
otherwise The Directors may make and 1ssue debentures to trustees for the purpose of further
secunty and the Company may remunerate any such trustees

The Directors may give secunty for the payment of any money payable by the Company in the same
manner as for the payment of money borrowed or raised

The Directors must keep a register of mortgages and charges in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, one third of the Directors who are subject to retirement by
rotation or, If thewr number 15 not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third, must retire from office at the annual general meeting in every year A Director retinng ata
general meeting, if he 1s not re-appointed, retains office until the meeting appoints someone in his
place or, if it does not do so, until the end of that meeting

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the Directors to retire 1n every year include, so far as
necessary to obtain the required number, any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election  Any further Directors so to retire are those who have been longest in office since their
last appointment or re-appomtment but, as between persons who became or were last re-apponted
Directors on the same day, those to retire are determined by lot, unless they otherwise agree among
themselves A retinng Director ¢ ehgible for re-appontment, subject as set out in these Articles

The Company at the mesting at which a Director retires in the manner set out in Article 129 may fil
the vacated office and, in default, the retinng Director, if willing to act, 1s deemed to have been re-
appointed, unless at such meeting it 1s expressly resolved not to fill the vacancy, or a resolution for the
re-appointment of such Director 1s put to the meeting and lost

No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting, unless recommended by the Directors for
appointment, 1s eligble for appointment to the office of a Director at any general meeting unless, not
fewer than seven nor morg than 42 clear days before the day apponted for the meeting, there 1s given
1o the Company notice In wriing by some member duly qualified to be present and vote at the
meeling for which such notice 1s given of his intention to propose such person for appointment stating
the requied particulars and, alse, notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be appointed

Al a general meeting, a motion for the appomntment of two or more persons as Directors by a single
resolution will be void, untess a resolution that it 15 so made has been first agreed fo by the meeting
without any vote being given aganst it and, for the purpose of this Article, a motion for approving a
person's appontment or for nominating a person for appointment 1s treated as a motion for his
appointment

The Company may from time to ime by Ordinary Resolution increase or reduce the number of
Directors and may also determine in what rotation such increased or reduced number 15 to go oul of
office  Without prejudice to the provisions of Arficle 134, the Campany may by Ordinary Resolution
appoint any person o be a Direclor, either to fill a casval vacancy or as an additional Director, and
remove a Director, including a Director holding exacutive office, before the expiry of his pertod of
office

The Directors and the Company in general meeting each have power at any time, and from time to

time, to appoint any persan to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addifional Director,
but so that the total number of Directors does not at any ime exceed the maximum number, if any,
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fixed by or in accardance with these Articles  Subject to the provisions of these Articles, any Director
so appointed by the Directors holds office only untif the conclusion of the next following annual
general meeung and 15 eligible for reappantment at that meeting  Any Director who retres under this
Article 15 not taken into account m determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
meeting

Any coniract of employment entered into by a Director with the Company may not include a term that
It 15 to continue or may be continued, otherwise than at the instance of the Company, for a pencd
exceeding five years during which the employment etther cannol be terminated by the Company by
nolice or can be so terminated only in specified circumstances, unless such termos first approved by
Ordinary Resolution of the Company

No person may be appoinied a Director if he has attained the age of 70 and each Director must
vacate his office when he attains the age of 70

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
The office of Director shall be vacated, If the Director

{a) becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors,

(b} 1s found to be or becomes of unsound mind,

(c) resigns his office by notice in writing to the Company,

(d} 15 removed from office by Ordinary Resolution, or

(e} 1s removed from office by notice addressed 1o him at his last known address and signed by

all his co-Directors (not beng less than two in number}

The company may, by special resalution, remove a Director before the expiry of his pertod of office
and may, by ordinary resalution, appont another person in his place Such removal 15 without
prejudice to any claim such Director may have far breach of any contract of service belween him and
the Company The person so appointed is subject o retrement at the same time as If he had
become a Diractor on the day on which the Director in whose place he 15 appointed was last
appointed or reappointed a Director

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Drrectors may meet together {edher within or without the Cayman Islands) for the despatch of
business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit Questions ansing at any
meeting are determined by a majonty of votes In case of an equality of votes, the chairman has a
second or casting vote A Director who 1s also an alternate Director is entitled, in the absence of the
Director whom he 1s representing, to a separate vote on behalf of such Director in addiion to his own
vote A Director may, and the secretary on the requistion of a Director must, at any time call a
meeting of the Directors

Notice of meetings of the Board of Directors 1s deemed to be duly given to a Direclor ff itis given to
him personally or by word of mouth or sent 1n writing to him at his last known address or any other
address given by him to the Company for this purpose

The quorum necessary for the transaclion of the business of the Directors may be fixed by the
Directors, and unless so fixed at any other number, 15 two  |In the event that a meeting of Directors 1s
attended by a Direclor who 1s acting as an alternate for one or more other Directors, the Director or
Directors for whom he is the alternate will be counted in the quorum despite their absence, and if on
this basis there 1s & quorum the meeting may be held despite the fact that only one Director 1s
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physically present A meeting of the Directors for the bme being at which a quorum I1s present is
competent to exercise all powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors

All or any of the Directors. mcluding alternates, or members of any committee of the Birectors may
participaie in 8 meeting of the Directors or that committee by means of a conference telephone or any
communication equipment which allows all persons parhcipating in the meeting to hear each other A
person so participating 1s deemed to be present in person at the meeting and may vate or be counted
i a quorum  Accordingly, a meeting of the Directors or commiltee of the Directors may be held
where each of those present or deemed to be present 1s in cammunication with the others only by
telephone or other communication equipment A meeting where those present or deemed to be
present are in different locations 1s deemed to take place where the largest group of those
participating 1s assembled, or, if there is no such group, where the chairman of the meeting then is

A Direclor who 1s 1n any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested n a contract or proposed
contract with the Company shall declare the nature of his interest at a meeting of the Directors A
general notice given to the Board of Directors by any Director to the effect that he is a member of any
specified company or firm and 1s ta be regarded as interested m any contract which may thereafter be
made with that company or firm shall be deemed a sufficient declaration of interest in regard to any
contract so made A Director may vote in respect of any contract or proposed contract or
arrangement notwithstanding that he may be interested therem and i he does so his vote shall be
counted and he may be counted in the quorum at any meeting of the Directors at which any such
contract or proposed contract or arrangement shall come before the meeting for consideration

A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the office of
audrtor} in comunchion with his office of Director for such penod and on such terms (as to
remuneration and otherwise) as the Directors may determing and no Director or intending Director
shall be disqualified by his office from contracling with the Company erther with regard to hus tenure of
any such other office or place of profit or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such
contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any Director 1s in any
way interested, be hable to be aveided, nor shall any Dirsctor so contracting or bemg so interested be
Iable to account to the Company for any profit realised by any such contract or arrangement by
reason of such Director holding 1hat office or of the fiduciary relation thereby established A Director,
notwithstanding tis inlerest, may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting of the Directors
where he or any other Director 1s appamted to hold any such office or place of profit under the
Company or where the terms of any such appointment are arranged and he may vote on any such
appointment or arrangement

The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy i therr body  If the number of the
Direclors 1s less than the prescabed minimum, tha remaining Director or Directors must immediately
appont an additional Oirector or additional Direclors to make up such minimum or will convene a
general meeting of the Company for the purpose of making such appantment  If there 1s no Director
or Directors able or willing to act, any two Members may summon a general meeting for the purpose
of appainting Directors  Any additional Director so appeinted holds office, subject to the provisions of
{hese Articles, only until the end of the annual general meeting of the Company next following such
appointment, unless he 1s re-elected during such meeting He 15 eligible for re-election at such
meeting and does not relire by rotation at such meeting nor 1s taken intg account in determining the
rotation or retirement of Directors at such meeting

The Directors may from time to time elect from ther number, and remove, a charrman and one or
more deputy chairmen or vice charmen and determine the period for which heis to hold office The
chairman, or In his absence, the deputy chairman or vice charrman {to be chosen If, in gach case,
there are more than one by agreement amongst them, or failing agreement, by lot) or in the absence
of any of them, some other Director nominated by a majonty of the other Directors in wriking, presides
at all meetings of the Directors  1f no such charman, deputy chairman or vice charrman is elected, or
if af any meeting the chawrman or the deputy chairman or the vice chairman or such other Directoris
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not present within five minutes after the tme appointed for holding it, or if none of them ts willing to act
as charrman, the Directors present may choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting

A resolution in writing, signed by all the Directors for the time being enbitied to receive notice of a
meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors, 1s as effective as a resclution passed at a
meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors, duly convened and held, and may consist of
several documents In the same form, each signed by one or more of the Directors  Any such
resolution or document signed by an allernate Director 1s deemed to have heen signed by a Director
who has appointed that alternate Director It need not be signed by the alternate Director in that
capacity

A meeting of the Directors for the time being at which a quorum is present 1s competent 1o exercise all
powers and discretions for the ktme being exercisable by the Directors

All acts done bona fide by any meeting of Directors, or of a committee of Directors, or by any person
acting as Director, are as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed, was qualified, had
continued to be a Director and had been entitled to vote, notwithstanding that it s afterwards
discovered that there was some defect in the appomtment of any such Director or person acting és a
Director, or that they or any of ihem were disqualfied, or had vacated office, or were not entitled to
vote

The Directors must ensure that minutes are made of
{a) all appointments of officers and committees made by the Directors,

(b} the names of the Directars present at each meeting of Directors and of any committee of
Directors and all business transacted at such meetings, and

(c) all orders, resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Company, of the holders of any
class of shares in the Company and of the Directors and of commtiees of Directors

Any such minute, If purporting to be signed by the chairman of the meeting at which the proceedings
were held, or by the charrman of the next succeeding meeting, 1s prima facie evidence of the matters
stated in such minutes without any further proof

A commiltee appointed by the Directors may elect a chairman of its meetings  ifno such charman is
elected, or If at any meeting the chairman 1s not present within five minutes after the ime appointed
for holding the meeting, the members present may choose cne of their number to be charman of the
meeting

A commiliee appointed by the Directors may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper  Questions ansing
at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the committee members present and in
case of an equalily of votes the chairman shall have a second or casting vote

SEAL AND AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

The Directors may provide a Seal for the Company and will have power from time to bme to destroy
any such Seal and to subshtute a new Seal for it

An instrument expressed to be executed and delivered as a deed by the Company signed by two
Directors or by one Director and secretary by the authonty of the Directors or a commitiee authorised
by the Directors has effect as if executed under Seal

The Directors must provide for the safe custody of the Seal and the Seal may never be used except

by the authority of a resolution of the Directors or of 2 committee of the Directors authonised for that
purpose by the Directors  The Directors may from time to ime make such regulations as they think
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fit, subject to the prowvisions of these Articles in relalion to share and debenfure certificates,
determiruing the persons and the number of such persons who may sign every instrument to which the
Seal 1s affixed and, untl otherwise so determined, every such instrument must be signed by one
Director and must be countersigned by a second Director or by the secretary

The Company may have official seals for use abroad Wherever reference 1s made in these Articles
to the Seal, the reference, when and sao far as may be applicable, is deemed to include any such
official seal

Any Director or the secretary or any person appointed by the Directors for the purpose has power to
authenticate any documents affecting the constitulion of the Company and any resclutions passed by
the Company or the Directors or any committee of the Direclors, and any books, records, documents
and accounts relating to the business of the Company, and to certify copies of them or extracts from
them as true copies or extracis A document purporting to be a copy of a resolution, or a copy of or
an extract from the mmnutes of a meeting of the Company or of the Directors or any committee of the
Drrectors, which 1s cerfified as stated, 1s conclusive evidence i favour of all persons dealing with the
Company upon the faith of any such copy that such resclution has been duly passed or, as the case
may be, that such copy or extract s a true and accurate record of proceedings at a duly constituted
meeting

DIVIDENDS

Subject to any nghts and restrnictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, the
Drrectors may from time to time declare dividends (including interim dividends) and other distnbutions
on shares n issue and authonise payment of the same out of the funds of the Company lawfully
available therefor

Subject to any nghts and restnchions for the ime being attached to any class or classes of shares, the
Company by Qrdinary Resolution may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Directors

The Directors may, before recommending or declaning any dividend, set aside out of the funds legaily
avaitable for distribution such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which shall, in the
absolute discreton of the Directors be apphcable for meeting contingencies, or for equalising
dividends or for any other purpose ta which those funds may be properly applied and pending such
application may in the absolute discretion of the Directars, aither be employed in the business af the
Company ar be invested in such investments (other than shares} as the Direclors may from time to
tme think fit

Any dividend may be paid by cheque sent through the post lo the registered address of the Member
or person entitfed thereto, or in the case of joint holders, to any one of such joint holders at hus
registered address or to such person and such address as the Member or person entitled, or such
Joint holders as the case may be, may direct Every such cheque shall be made payable to the order
of the person to whom it is sent or to the order of such other person as the Member or person entitled,
or such joint holders as the case may be, may direct

The Directors when paying dividends to the Members in accordance with the provisions of these
Articles may make such payment either in cash or i specie

Subject to any nghts and restrictions for the ttme being attached to any class or classes of shares, all
dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid on the shares, butif and so long
as nothing 1s paid up on any of the shares dividends may he declared and paid according to the par
value of the shares No amount paid on a share in advance of calls shall, while carrying interest, be
freated for the purposes of this Article as paid on the share
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If several persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any of them may give effectual receipts
for any dividend or other moneys payable on or In respect of the share

Any dividend unclaimed after a period of 12 years from the date of its declaration by the Directors will
be forfetted and will revert to the Company All dividends, interest or other sums payable and
unclaimed for one year, after having been declared, may be invested or otherwise made use of by
the Dhrectors for the benefit of the Company until claimed and the Company 15 not constituted a
trustee in respect of them No dividend will bear interest as against the Company

ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

The books of account relating to the Company's affairs shall be kept in such manner as may be
determined from time to time by the Directors

The books of account shall be kept at the registered office of the Company, or at such other place or
places as the Directors think fit, and shall always be open fo the inspechon of the Directors

The Directors shail from time to tme determine whether and to what extent and at what tmes and
places and under what conditions or regulations the accounts and books of the Company or any of
them shall be open to the nspection of Members not being Directors, and no Member (not being a
Director) shalt have any nght of Inspeciing any account or book or document of the Company except
as conferred by law or authonsed by the Directors or by the Company by Ordinary Resolution

The accounts refating to the Company's affairs shall only be audited if the Direclors so determine, in
which case the financial year end and the accounting principles will be determined by the Drectors

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
Subject lo the Companies Law, the Directors may, with the autherity of an Ordinary Resolution
{a) resolve to capilalise an amount standing to the credit of reserves (including a share premium
account, capital redemption reserve and profit and loss account), whether or not available for
distnibution,
{h) appropriate the sum resolved to be capitalised to the Members in proportion to the nominal

amount of shares {whether or not fully paid) held by them respectively and apply that sum on
therr behalf in or towards

(1} paying up the amounts (if any) for the time being unpaid on shares held by them
respectvely, or

{n} paying up in full unissued shares or debentures of a nominal amount equal to that
sum,

and allot the shares or debentures, credited as fully pad, to the Membars (or as they may
direct) in those proportions, or partly in one way and partly in the other, but the share
premium account, the capital redemption reserve and profits which are not avatlable for
distribution may, for the purposes of this Article, only be apphed in paying up unissued shares
to be allotted to Members credied as fully paid,

{c) make any arrangements they think fit to resolve a difficulty ansing i the distnbution of 2
capilalised reserve and in parbcular, without imitation, where shares or debentures become
drstributable in fractions the Directors may deal wiih the fractions as they think fit,

(d) authorise a persan lo enter {on behalf of all the Members concerned) into an agreementwith
the Company providing for either
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(1 the allotment to the Members respectively, credited as fully paid, of shares or
debentures to which they may be entited on the capitalisation, or

(n) the payment by the Companiy on behalf of the Members (by the apphcation of ther
respective proportions of the reserves resolved to be capitalised) of the amounts or
part of the amounts remaining unpaid on therr existing shares,

and any such agreement made under this authonty being effective and binding on all those
Members, and

(e} generally do all acts and things reguired to give effect to the resolution
SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

The Directors shall in accordance with Saction 34 of the Companies Law establsh a share premium
account and shall carry to the credit of such account from fime to ime a sum equal to the amount or
value of the premwum paid on the 1ssue of any share

There shall be debited to any share premium account on the redemption or purchase of a share the
difference between the nominal value of such share and the redemption or purchase pnce provided
always that at the discretion of the Directors such sum may be paid out of the profits of the Company
or, if perrmitted by Section 37 of the Companies Law, out of capital

NOTICES

Any nohice or document may be served by the Company or by the persen entiled lo give notice to any
Member either personaily, by facsimile or by sending i through the post in a prepaid letter or via a
recogrused couner service, fees prepaid, addressed to the Member at his address as appearing in the
Register of Members In the case of joint holders of a share, all notices shall be given to that one of
the joint holders whase name stands first in the Register of Members n respect of the joint holding,
and nohice so given shall be sufficient notice to all the jaint holders

Any Member present, either personally or by proxy, at any meetng of the Company shall for ali
purposes be deemad to have receved due notice of such meeting and, where requisite, of the
purposes for which such meeting was convened

Any notice or other document, If served by (a) post, shall be deemed to have been served two days
after the ime when the ietter containing the same s posted, or, (o) facsimile, shall be deemed to have
been served upon production by the transmitbng facsimile machine of a report confirming
transmission of the facsimile in full to the facsimile number of the recipient or (¢} recognised courner
service, shall be deemed to have been served 48 hours after the time when the letler containing the
same 15 delivered to the couner service In proving service by post or courer service it shall be
sufficient to prove that the letter contaming the notice or documents was properly addressed and duly
posted or delivered to the couner service

Any notice or document delivered or sent by post to or left at the registered address of any Member
in accordance with the terms of these Articles shall notwithstanding that such Member be then dead
or bankrupt, and whether or not the Company has notice of his death or bankruptcy. be deemed to
have baen duly served in respect of any share regrstered in the name of such Member as scle or joint
holder, unless his name shall at the time of the service of the notice or document, have bean removed
from the Register of Members as the holder of the share, and such service shall for all purposes be
deemed a sufficient service of such notice or document an all persons interested (whether jointly with
or as claiming through or under him) in the share

Notice of every general meeting of the Company shall be given to
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{a} all Members holding shares with the right to receive notice and who have supphed to the
Company an address for the giving of notices to them, and

(6) every person entitied to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Member,
who but for us death or bankruptey would be enttled to receive notice of the meeting

No other person shall be entifled to recewve notices of general mestings
INDEMNITY

Every Director (including for the purposes of this Articie any alternale Direclor appointed pursuant to
the provisions of these Articles), Secretary, Assistant Secretary, or other officer for the tme being and
from time to tme of the Company (but not including the Company's audilors} and the personal
representatives of the same shall be Indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and funds of
the Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or
habilihes incurred or sustained by hum in or about the conduct of the Company's business or affairs or
in the execution or discharge of his duties, powers, authonities or discretions, including without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or habiities incurred by um in
defending {whether successfully or otherwrse) any civil proceedings concerning the Company or its
affairs m any court whether in the Cayman |stands or elsewhere

No such Director, alternate Director, Secretary, Assistant Secretary or other officer of the Company
{but not including the Company's auditors) shall be hable (a) for the acts, receipts, neglects, defaults
or omissions of any other such Director or officer or agent of the Company or {b) for any loss on
account of defect of title to any property of the Company or (¢} on account of the insufficiency of any
secunty In or upon which any money of the Company shall be invested or (d) for any loss incurred
through any bank, broker or other similar person or (e) for any loss occasioned by any negligence,
default, breach of duty, breach of trust, error of judgement or oversight on his part or () for any loss,
damage or misfortune whatsoever which may happen in or anse from the axecution or discharge of
the duties, powers authonities, or discretions of his office orin relation thereto, unless the same shall
happen through his own dishonesty

NON-RECOGNITION OF TRUSTS

No person shall be recogrised by the Company as holding any share upon any trust and the
Company shall not, unless required by law, be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise
(even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent or future interest in any of its shares or
any other nghts 1n respect thereof except an absolute nght to the entirety thereof in each Member
registered in the Register of Members

WINDING UP

If the Company shall be wound up the lquidator may, with the sanction of an Special Resolution of the
Company divide amengst the Members m specie or kind the whale or any part of the assels of the
Company (whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose
set such value as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how
such dvision shall be carned out as between the Members or different classes of shares The
hquidator may, with the ike sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such
frusts for the benefit of the contributories as the guidator, with the like sanction shall think fit, but so
thal no Member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securties whereon there is any
habthty

AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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Subject to the Companies Law and the rights attaching to the vanous classes of shares, the Company
may at any time and from time to time by Special Resolution alter or amend these Articles in whole or
in part

REGISTRATION BY WAY OF CONTINUATION

The Company may by Special Resolution resolve to be registered by way of continuation in a
Jurisdichon outside the Cayman Islands or such other junsdiction in wiich it 1s for the time being
incorporated, registered or existing In furtherance of a resolution adopted pursuantto this Arlicle, the
Directors may cause an apphcation to be made to the Registrar of Companies to deregister the
Company in the Cayman Islands or such other junisdiction m which it i1s for the tme being
incorporated, registered or existing and may cause all such further steps as they consider approprate
io be taken to effect the transfer by way of contnuation of the Company
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2012 was a transformative year for the Group with the strengthening of the senior management team and
the acquisition of Frontier Silicon {*Frontier’) in July 2012

The Board recognised early in 2012 that the Group needed to commercialise its considerable R&D talents
and to that end appomted Anthony Sethill as Chief Executive in May 2012 with me taking on the
Chairman’s role Anthony brings a significant and successful history 1n the semi-conductor and consumer
electronics arena having founded and grown Frontier to a £20m plus turnover business n a little over 8
years

The combined Group now comprises key skillsets in wireless communication, DAB radio chip design,
embedded software, sensor technology and cloud based services and applications The addition of
Frontier also brings expertise in supply chain management and outsourced manufacturing along with cost
benefits and efficiencies

The Group 1s now able to provide the chips to power its end-to-end solutions and. with the completion of
its next generation of chip designs durning 2013, the Group should become fully self- sufficient When
this 15 combined with the ultra-low power that has always been a Toumaz trademark, I believe the Group
will have excellent commercial propositions in each of its key markets

The senior management team and Board have also been strengthened overall with the appointment of
Jonathan Apps as CFO in November 2012 and Chris Batterham as a Non-executive Director it July 2012
Jonathan brings a wealth of experience 1n technology businesses, having previously been CFO of
Europe’s largest mdependent WiF1 operator The Cloud Networks. which was sold to BskyB 1 2011, and
CFO of a number of listed companies

The Group appointed Jim Nicholas as Vice President of marketing i January 2013 Jim has spent over
25 vears 1n the semiconductor industry, including roles as General Manager of the processor division at
STM. Europe’s largest semiconductor business, and more recently as Vice President of marketing at
ARM also within the processor division

Toumaz Healthcare also appointed Steve Atkinson as Senior Vice President & General Manager of
Toumaz in March 2013 Steve has over 20 vears® experience in medical devices, partrcularly focusing on

sales and marketing at GE Healthcare, amongst other companies

Sir Richard Sykes, Serge Grisard. lan McWalter, Winston Wong and Patrick Stephansen stepped down
from the Board during 2012 and I would like to thank them for their contributions to the Group

I would also like to thank the staff in our locations around the globe for their commitment and energy 1n
making the Group what 1t 1s today and in driving 1t forward to what it can become

Prof Christopher Toumazou
Chairman
24 Apnl 2013
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

During 2012, Toumaz commenced its transformation from an R&D led to a market led organtsation, with
the aim of becoming a global leader in wireless semiconductor solutions The Group has reviewed 1ts core
strengths and developed a focused strategy. exploiting Toumaz's exceptional technology and expertise
The Group’s Board and senior management team have also been significantly strengthened

The Group’s strategy 15 to become fully self-sufficient m providing new chip solutions focused on the
needs of 1ts core digital radio, digital audio and healthcare markets It aims to ensure these solutions are
appropriately commercialised and marketed. to exploit existing market opportunitzes and to realise the
full potential within the healthcare drvision

To enable 1t to deliver on its strategy, the Group acquired Frontier Silicon in August 2012 Frontier
provides Toumaz with a market leading position 1n digital radio and connected audio, bringing annual
revenues of over £20m and a proven sales, marketing and supply chain infrastructure It also has
incremental technologies and capabilities complementary to those already existing within Toumaz

The enlarged Group 1s now organised nto two market-focused operating umits Frontier Digrtal Audio
(incorporating Digital Radio and Connected Audio) and Toumaz Healthcare, which share appropriate
infrastructure. enhancing operational efficiencies

The Frontier Digital Audio division 1s focused on connectivity within consumer electronics. including the
‘Internet of Things’, where peripheral devices are wirelessly connected to the internet to enable the
automated home

Toumaz Healthcare's focus 1s on wireless momitorig of patients in the hospital environment and 1t plans
to extend this into the domestic environment over the next few years As the healthcare industry grapples
with the 1ssues of aging populations, increasing costs and risks of infection. treating patients in lower cost
environments, using reliable, cheap, disposable wireless monitoring becomes increasingly important

The kev differentiator of Toumaz's SensiumVitals® disposable product 1s the continuous monitoring of
patients’ vital signs The benefits of this include early intervention 1f a patient’s condition deteriorates.
and reduced costs to healthcare providers through hmiting the need for medication and additional
treatment thanks to early intervention

Toumaz’s core technology and IP 15 common to both divisions” solutions and the enlarged Group now
includes all the components to provide complete proprietary platforms, including both hardware and
software Toumaz’s radio chip capability is a strong differentiator for its products, as 1s the Group’s
ability to provide complete end-to-end solutions, something which many large semiconductor businesses
have struggled with

The Group’s transformation will gather pace during 2013 as 1t begins to sample and launch 1ts new chip
platforms, targeting 1ts core markets Toumaz 1s confident that 1t 15 on the path to delivering sustainable
growth 1n the near future

DIGITAL RADIO
Overview

Prospects for our digital radio business appear healthy Over the next three years, market volumes are
expected to see significant growth as the adoption of digital radio increases 1n the UK and mternationally
We expect to see some continued erosion of prices due to competitive pressures, this will 1n turn help to
drive volume growth as the cost differential between analogue and digital radio chips narrows
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

Investments m new chip developments will enable the Group to maintain margins at current levels We
expect our market share in our core markets of DAB / DAB+ consumer radios and automotive
aftermarket (currently ~80%) to remamn broadly stable

Market development (UK and international)

In the UK. our largest market, the Government has indicated that 1t will make a decision by the end of
2013 whether to proceed with digital switchover A positive decision, supported by the introduction of a
Digital Radio Certification Scheme, would be expected to provide a strong uphft to sales of digital radios
in the UK. currently 2m units a year Significant growth potential exists as. currently. only one third of
radios, mcluding clock radios and home audio systems, sold are dlgital', the automotive aftermarlet
sector represents an additional opportunity of up to 20m units between now and an eventual switchover
date

Internationally, digital radio 1s beginning to make significant advances Norway and Denmark have set
target dates for digital switchover (2017 and 2019 respectively), whilst Switzerland and Australia are now
firmly established markets - both territories have cumulative sales of over Im umits Perhaps of greatest
interest has been the progress made in Germany. where DAB+ services were launched tn August 2011
With support from public and private broadcasters, 2012 saw the first sigmificant volumes from this
market Strong growth 1s anticipated over the next three years

Developments in Germany are helping to build a wider momentum for digital radio across Europe

® The Netherlands will see the launch of DAB+ in September

¢ In Italy, the first regional services went on air at the end of 2012

¢ In France. the regulator 1s n the process of awarding the first licences for Paris, Nice and
Marseille

¢ In Sweden, the government 1s to make a deciston this year on whether to award licences for
DAB+ services

¢ In Belgium, broadcasters are seeking Government approval to launch DAB+ services

This momentum 1s supported by the European Broadcasters Union, representing public broadcasters,
which has called for the widespread deployment of digital radio across Europe

Further afield. we see the emergence of additional opportunities in the Americas and Asia  the US has
already adopted 1ts version of digital radio - HD radio, in India, the Government has confirmed its support
for the DRM standard, and Japan has adopted ISDB-T The Group’s next generation digital radio chip
will support all of these standards The scale of these opportunities has vet to be sized, these additional
standards have the potential to create sigmificant upside for the business

Competitive positioning and product development
The Group’s Digital Radio division 1s the clear market leader in the provision of digital radio solutions
with an ~80% market share 1n 1ts core markets It has long established relationships with major consumer

electronics brands, including Sony, Phihps, Pure. Roberts, Bose. Grundig and Panasonic — plus many
retailer own-brands

* Of portable radtos. 70% are digital (GfK, 2012)

4|Page



TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

As the adoption of digital radio accelerates, new competitors are likely to emerge To date. these players
have had limited success, but a high prionity for the business 1s to protect its market share The Group's
mvestments in chip and software developments are designed to meet this objective — as well as helping to
drive the market The focus of our engineering teams s to ntegrate as much functionality on a single
chip solution as possible, mimimise power consumption and introduce new functionality which meets the
needs of customers, content providers and end-users’

A specific objective for the busimess 1s to reduce the price differential between analogue and digital radio
chips which will aid digital uptake The Group’s next generation chip, Chorus 4, will narrow this gap
substantially

CONNECTED AUDIO
Overview
Toumaz sees connected audio as a key component of 1ts long term growth strategy

® The networked audio sector 1s poised for take-off. by 2016, ~70% of new consumer audio
devices are expected to be connected

¢ The Group already has significant technology expertise 1n this sphere — a position strengthened
through 1ts partnership with Imagination Technologies

* Toumaz will seek both to leverage its existing customer base and secure new clients (including
major consumer electronics brands not active in digital radio)

Over the next two years. the Group expects to launch a number of network audio solutions The short-
term focus will be on Bluetooth products — especially those targeting the wireless dock market, these will
be followed by products which combine both Bluetooth and Wi-F1 - wath a particular focus on low cost
solutions for the broader connected audio market

Market development

Connected products are a rapidly emerging segment within consumer audio A worldwide market in
2012 of ~20m connected audio devices 1s expected to rise to ~70m units by 2016

Key dnivers of this growth are
¢ the rapid adoption of smart devices (smartphones and tablets)
o the growing populanity of cloud-based music streaming services
o the falling cost of connected audio solutions

Currently, the connected audio market 1s mainly Bluetooth-enabled (1 € music 1s streamed via Bluetooth
from smart devices to wireless speakers) Bluetooth 1s a low cost. mature technology commonplace in
mobile phones

! For example, Blugtooth connectivity between radios and smart devices, which enables smartphones or tablets to
act as a remote control for the radio — and to display IP-delivered visual content (e g album artwork, news updates)
related to the broadcast audio being plaved
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

Over time. we expect Wi-F1 to become more prevalent — becomng the backbone of connected home
ecosystems. whilst (compared to Bluetooth) offering superior range and audio quahty The uptake of Wi-
F11n connected audio 1s expected to rise as the price gap between Wi-Fi and Bluetooth solutions
diminishes and the advantages of W1-F1 are demonstrated

Competitive positiomng and product development

The Group already has significant expertise in connected audio  Frontier Silicon modules are to be found
in over 1m internet radios, and the Xenif Wi-F1 chip provides a range of advanced audio applications,
including multi-room  The Group's hardware solutions are complemented by a suite of software
solutions — for example, for the integration of online music services (e g Pandora and Sirius XM), audio
processing, wireless streaming and apps for simart devices

In 2013, Toumaz plans to launch Tuscany — a low-cost module addressing the rapidly expanding wireless
dock market Our primary focus will be on wireless docks with radios (particularly those with digital
rad10s)

In partnership with Imagination Technologies, the Group 1s already several months nto the development
of Symphony, tts next generation connected audio chip This chip will be based on Imagmmation’s MIPS
interactive core (including DSP extensions) and will include Wi-Fi, Bluetooth, NFC and audio processing
and 15 scheduled for launch in 2015

Also 1n partnership with Imagination Technologies, Toumaz 1s developing Roma, a wireless module
based on the Group's Xenif Wi-Fi chip which will be able to provide cloud based content and streaming
for multi-room speakers This 1s planned for launch in the second half of 2013

The Internet of Things

Symphony 1s a keystone of the Group’s long term strategy to address the market for the “Internet of
Things™ As connectivity becomes more pervasive m-home and at work, the market for embedded
products 1s expected to grow exponentially Toumaz's mitial focus 1s on connected audio and wireless
healthcare Longer term, we expect to explore additional opportunities in adjacent sectors, such as home
automation, security, smart metering, toys and wn-car infotainment The development of Symphony and
Sensium 2 (see under Healthcare) are the first steps in this journey

HEALTHCARE

Overview

Senstum® s Toumaz's platform for ultra low-power wireless body arca monitoring The global patient

monitoring market 1s estimated at $6 1 billion* and the Sensium® platform aims to serve this market by
incorporating all the components needed for a healthcare monitoring system including

* Unobtrusive, long battery life body nodes with multiple sensor nterfaces
s Wireless networking optimised for health & medical data
» Server technology to enable enterprise level deployments
e Efficient algorithms to overcome corruption from motion

1 Source GBI Research 2010
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

Sensium® technology 1s suitable for a wide range of markets from hospital to care homes/nursing homes
and further domestic applications The technology can be packaged into different form factors, including
disposable and non-disposable. for each of the markets

The first product based on Sensium ® technology 1s SensiumVitals® — a wireless vital signs monitoring
solution aimed at the general wards of hospitals Toumaz US, Toumaz's licensee for SensimVitals®. has
launched the product in the USA with a pilot at St John's Health Center The pilot has progressed
extremely well and has clearly demonstrated the patient safety benefits of SensiumVitals®

SensiumVitals®

General floor or med-surg patients 1n hospital currently have measurements of their “vital signs™ taken
and recorded only intermittently, commonly at four to eight hour intervals, unless they have previously
been dentified as at particular risk of deterioration Thus deteriorations can occur to a point of sertous
consequence before 1t 1s recognized A system that automatically measures patient vital signs and can
notify a clinictan when a patient’s condition changes would help to alleviate this situation and increase
patient safety This will also help save costs for hospitals and healthcare trusts since patient deterioration
can be treated carly on 1n the general ward and prevent readmission to more costly areas of the hospital
such as ICUs/HDUs

SensiumVitals® 1s an end to end solution that consists of a disposable wireless plaster with integrated
temperature sensor that will be applied to a patient The disposable plaster 1s fixed to the patient and
captures vital signs (axillary temperature, pulse, and respiratory rate) every 2 mimutes The plaster
measures the vital signs using standard techniques that are widely used wn patient monitors in hosprtals If
any of these vital signs are outside defined upper and lower limits a notification 1s raised by the server
software The plaster has a five day battery life and can be disposed after use

SensiumVitals® 1s currently being piloted at St John’s Health Center in Santa Monica, CA The pilot has
proved extremely successful — heart rate. respiratory rate and temperature are the leading indicators of
patient deterioration and the plaster has helped detect patient deterioration many hours before routine vital
signs rounds n the general ward

In April 2013. Toumaz published a white paper on the results and health economics study of the first six
months of its pilot at St John’s Results from pilot exceeded expectations, with the medical and economic
case for the use of SensiumVitals® clearly demonstrated

There are many case studies of incidents where the plaster has been helpful in early detection of
deterioration Of note 1s when the plaster helped detect the onset of sepsis which can save the hospital
sigmificant cost as well as prevent serious deterioration in the patient The plaster has also proved useful
with non-verbal patients who are unable to vocalise discomfort Nurse feedback has been very positive —
nurses like the fact that the plaster 1s easy to apply and use and helps highlight the patients that are
deteriorating

SenstumVitals® 1s a FDA 510(k) cleared product Regulatory approvals in other regions, including CE
marking in Europe, will follow during 2013. and the Group 1s 1in advanced planning for a pilot with a
private hospital group 1n the UK

Competitive positioning and product development

The traditional method of monitoring vital signs in a hospital general ward involves the use of large
patient monutors that are wheeled from room to room Clearly this 1s not suitable for continuous wireless
on-body monitoring Of the few competitive products 1n this field SensiumVitals® has the clear
advantage — the plaster weighs a mere 13g and 1s the most unobtrusive and comfortable solution on the
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

market It 1s also the only fully disposable solution on the market This means that 1t 1s easier for
caregivers to use and has no chance of infection transmission from one patient to another

Toumaz's key advantages i this space are underpinned by the Group’s semiconductor chip development
programmes The current SensiumVitals® plaster 1s based on Toumaz's first generation Sensium® chip
This uses a proprietary wireless communications protocol optimised for ultra low-power health
monitoring applications

Toumaz has played an important role with the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) in
the development of a new standard for body area networking The new global standard IEEE 802 15 6
was ratified in February 2012 and 1s aimed at medical body area networks Recognising the importance of
wireless body area monitoring the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) in the USA has granted
approval for the allocation of a Medical Body Area Network (MBAN) spectrum The new IEEE 802 15 6
standard includes the ability to use the MBAN spectrum

Toumaz 1s developing a next generation chip that will implement IEEE 802 15 6 as well as Bluetooth
Smart (the new Bluetooth low energy standard) This will position the next generation Sensium® chip for
use 1n the medical monitoring market as well as the consumer sports and fitness market These new chip
developments, together with the addition of new vital signs, improved algorithms, wireless range and user
mterface to the SensiumVitals® platform will help protect Toumaz’s competitive advantage

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The information provided in this section relates to continuing operations unless indicated otherwise The
results for Frontier Silicon (“Frontier™) have been consolhidated from 20 August 2012, the effective date of
the completion of the acquisiion Where figures are given on a pro-forma basis, this assumes Frontier
had been acquired on 1 January 2012 and hence a full year’s results have been included

Group

Group revenue for the year increased from £2 3m to £8 8m due to the acquisition of Frontter Silicon On a
pro-forma basis revenue declined from £24 8m to £22 3m primarily due to one-off non-recurring
consulting fees n 2011 of £2m

Group EBITDA loss (loss from continuing operations less depreciation, amortisation and impairment and
share based payment costs) in 2012 was £9 2m, (2011 loss of £5 8m) The increased loss 15 primartly
due to extended investment costs in chip development During the year an impairment review was carned
out on the Group’s intangible assets and a charge of £10 2m has been taken to reflect the end of hife of
certain of the ntellectual property previously recognised on the balance sheet due to technological
advances n the ndustry

Revenue

Revenue was derived from the Digital Radio and Connected Audio sector m 2012 and against a difficult
economic background performed well with a 10 3% increase 1 unit sales vear on vear

The Healthcare division has yet to record continutng revenue from product sales being still in a
developmental phase In 2011 1t recorded revenue of £1 8m from a non-recurring consulting project

Gross profit margin for the Group. was 45 6% (2011 35 4%) representing a change in product mix
following the acquisition of Frontier
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE STATEMENT

Costs of acquining Frontier Silicon

The Group acquired Frontier on 20 August 2012 and incurred £0 6m 1n professional fees and transaction
costs 1n the process These costs have been expensed as normal trading costs n the total comprehensive
loss for the year

Pre-tax loss

The Group reports a pre-tax loss of £21 6m for the year (2011 loss of £7 3m) representative of the fact
that 1t 1s still 1n a developmental phase which should start to drive further revenues from the end of 2014
onwards

Taxation

The Group has historically applied for and received tax credits in respect of its research and development
expenditure In 2012 the tax credits amounted to £1 4m (2011 £0 6m) It 1s expected that similar claims
will be made 1n the future

As at 31 December 2012 the Group has unutihsed tax losses of £39 5m that may be ultilised against
taxable future profits These losses are suill to be agreed with the UK tax authorities In the Board's
opinton there 1s uncertainty over the timig and quantum of their use n the foreseeable future and
therefore a deferred tax asset has not been recognised

Retained loss

Full year retained comprehensive losses in 2012 were £20 4m (2011 £6 8m) The increased loss 1s as a
result of both the investment m new chip development discussed above and also a one off charge of
£10 2m as a result of an impairment review of the Group’s intangible assets It 1s the Board’s view that
certain of the IP held on the balance sheet at the beginning of the year no longer has the future value to
support 1ts carrymg value for the reasons explained above During 2012, no R&D expenditure met the
Group’s capitalisation criteria as set out in the accounting policies and as such the total research and
development expenditure of £6 4m has been recognised in the total comprehensive loss In addition to
the chip development costs, the Group 15 also investing in the German DAB market to stimulate demand
and unit sales

Cash flow

As at the year-end the Group recorded £15 3m of cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet On
current plans the Group does not see a necessity of seeking further funding 1n 2013

CURRENT TRADING AND OUTLOOK

The Group 1s trading in line with the Board’s expectations With the combination of Toumaz and
Frontier, significant operational benefits and design synergies should be gained Revenue 1s underpinned
by strong recurring revenues in the Digital Radio sector where the Group enjoys a significant market
share The Digital Radio market 1s expected to expand over the coming vears and although there 1s likely
to be some price erosion on sales, the new chip developments should see costs falling at a greater rate
Following the successful pilot in North America, the Group beheves that it has a commercial product in
SensiumVitals® and will be looking to generate revenues 1n this sector in 2012 The Group’s ongoing
strategy 1S to ensure that the timetables for the chip developments currently underway are adhered to,
existing markets are maintained and that the potential in the Healthcare market 1s realised
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group reported cash and cash equivalents of £15 3m  In the Board's view.
this 1s sufficient to fund the Group's activities. as currently planned. until early 2014 Depending on
trading and chip development during 2013, elements of the development plan can be deferred to preserve
cash if required In addition, should further funding be required, the Board are confident that a number of
alternative sources of finance could be available and a more detailed examimation of their relative ments
will be considered at that time

Anthony Sethill
Chief Executive Officer
24 April 2013
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

DIRECTORS® REPORT

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolhidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 This report has been prepared voluntanily in order to
provide appropriate information for the shareholders

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group 1s that of commercial exploitation of ultra-low power wireless
infrastructure technologies with commercial propositions within the Toumaz Healthcare and Digital
radio/Connected audio divisions as discussed 1n the Chief Executive Statement

Business review

A review of the business n the year and of future developments 1s given in the Chairman's statement
and Chief Executive Officer's report on pages 2 to 10

The results of the Group are shown within the financial statements The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend

The key performance indicators the Directors utilise to monitor the performance of the Group are as
follows

Product commercialisation

The Group 1s currently undertaking a number of major chip developments where sales to end
customers 15 not assured The Board receive and monrtor regular reports on the status of end
programme and potential customers

Sales contracts and licence deals signed and third party development projects undertaken by Group
companies are monitored on a regular basis In 2011 the Group signed a licence agreement with
Toumaz US to commercialize the Sensium® technology to hospitals The commercialisation process
of the SensiumVitals® digital plaster system has started in the US with a pilot at St John's Health
Center m Santa Monica The pilot has been overseen by Toumaz US and 1s progressing well with a
clear demonstration of the many patient safety benefits of the technology The digital radio division
has long established relationships with major consumer electronics brands. including Seny. Philips,
Pure. Roberts, Bose. Grundig and Panasonic plus during the vear there were a significant number of
design wins with large retailers

Funding

Durmg the year the Group concentrated on managing the cash resources of the business in line with
internal financial projections On 13 February 2012 the Group announced the raising of £11 1m from
existing and new shareholders to fund 1ts development programme and provide working capital A further
£29 3m was raised 1n August 2012 to fund the acquisition of the Frontier Silicon Group The current
forecasts assume that no further funds are required 1 the near term and that should funding be required 1n
future periods then 1t 15 believed a number of potential sources may be available and that these be
assessed at that time

Share price
The share price 15 constantly under scrutiny by the management, and commented upon at Board
meetings
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Business risks

There are a number of potential risks and uncertainties which could adversely impact the achievement
of the Group’s corporate aims The following are the key risks the Board has 1dentified together with
the processes and pohicies the Group has 1n place to mitigate those risks as far as commercially
practical

The introduction of “disruptive technology” inte the market exposes us to risks

The mtroduction of new and untested “disruptive technology™ into the market place exposes the Group
to the risk that costly developments will take longer or not achieve acceptable financial returns and put
a strain on financial resources Close relationships with customers. strategic partners and attendance at
technology conferences help management keep informed of new technology innovations

The length of our product design cycle exposes us to risks

The lengthy design cycle makes 1t difficult to forecast product demand. with the possibihity that
products will ulumately not be required by our customers or alternatives become available to them,
leading to a failure to achieve expected returns A close relationship with customers and good
management of the Integrated Circuit design team will mitigate these risks

Delays in development and testing may occur

Designing and introducing new and revised products, at the cutting edge of the technology central to
the Group. can result in operating failures when first introduced and tested Delays 1n this can
adversely impact our ability to supply the products our customers might want in a timely manner
Continued improvement of management of the IC design team and software development team will
mitigate these risks

Delay or failure in aclueving regulatory authorisation

Any delay or failure in achieving the required accreditation for our products, such as Medical Devices
Approval, would lead to an underachievement of the returns expected from our Toumaz Healthcare
Division The Sensium® platform for hospital application (complete system from patient to hospital
server and nurse’s work stations) was FDA cleared in July 2011 Regulatory approvals in other regions
inctuding CE marking in Europe are expected in 2013

The success of our customer’s products is critical fo our business

We are dependent. particularly in the Digital Radio and Connected Audio Division. that manufacturers
select and design 1n our products into their own products Even 1f this occurs sales of our products are
dependent on the commercial success of the end consumer product With the acquisition of Frontier
this nisk 1s reduced as the products within this division have been estabhshed within the market for a
number of years and are built into a wide range of end brands

We may be unable te protect properly our intellectual property and may face challenges for
mnfringement by third parties

Whilst we seek to protect our intellectual property by a well structured and controlled process of
patent applications. maintenance and other tools, we face the nisk that others may seek to copy and/or
infringe certain aspects of our mtellectual property Defence of our claims may prove unsuccessful and
expensive In addition we might face challenges to our use of intellectual property that others might
claim belongs to them The consequences of this would be either a complete withdrawal and redesign
of the offending product or serious and costly delays in proving our right to exploit the disputed
intellectval property We are not aware of any situation of IP infringement

We are exposed to risks associated with our suppliers and partners failing and causing a disruption

mn supply
We are dependent on third parties to manufacture our components and, in some cases, assemble our

products Failure of any of our major suppliers could lead to delays in designing and testing new
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products and 1n supplying products on time and at the agreed costs to our existing customers This nisk
1s reduced by using a number of different suppliers wherever possible

We are dependent on our sentor management and staff for our product development and delvery to
customers

If we fail to retain key management and employees our ability to successfully complete on time and to
budget both our development programme and commitments to customers will lead to delays 1n
achieving Group strategic results To protect our position in this regard we constantly monitor the
compenitive nature of our salary and rewards package. look to the share option scheme to add
additional benefits to key employees and regularly update them, through staff meetings and imdividual
briefings. to add *buy 1n” to our corporate objectives

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents The Group has
various other financial instruments such as trade recervables and trade payables, which arise directly
from 1ts operations

The Group 1s exposed to a vanety of financial risks which result from both 1ts operating and investing
activities The Directors are responsible for co-ordinating the Group's risk management and focus on
actively securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets and has no financial derivatives
The most significant risks to which the Group 1s exposed are described below

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk 1s primarily attributable to its trade recervables The amounts presented 1n the
balance sheet are net of any allowance for doubtful receivables, esuuimated by the Directors The
majonity of the Group’s customers are large. established businesses Credit control checks are carned
out on all new customers and credit hmits are regularly reviewed

Cash flow risks

The Group seeks to manage risks to ensure sufficient iquidity 1s available to meet foreseeable needs
by mvesting cash assets safely and profitably Short term flexibility 1s achieved by the use of money
markets to deposit excess cash which 1s not required 1n the short term  The Directors prepare rolling
cash flow forecasts and seek to 1dent:ify the need and raise additional funding whenever a shortfall in
facihities 1s forecast £11 Im was raised in February 2012 from a share 1ssue and a further £29 3m 1n
August 2012

Currency risks

The Group 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk Most of its products are priced in US$ and, whlst the
majority of its third party cost base 1s also denominated 1n USS, a large element of its labour cost 1s
borne in sterling Management aim to keep a reasonable balance of cash 1n both US$ and sterling to
cover the cost base The Group does not seek to hedge 1ts foreign exchange risk and the Directors
consider that the exposure to movements in foreign currencies 1s not significant At the time when the
Directors consider that exposure to foreign exchange trading risks becomes significant they will seek
to adopt appropriate hedging strategies and products
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Directors

The Directors who served during the year are set out below

Professor C Toumazou FRS (Executive Chairman)

Mr A Sethull (CEQ) (Appomnted 4 May 2012)

Mr C Batterham (Non-executive director) {(Appomted 3 July 2012)
Mr M Kmght {(Non-executive Director)

Sir H Yossaie (Non-executive Director)

Mr J Apps (CFO) (Appointed 12 November 2012)

Mr S Grisard (Non-executive Director) (resigned 30 March 2012}
Mr I McWalter (Non-executive Director) (restgned 30 March 2012)

Sir R Sykes FRS ( Former Executive Chairman) (Resigned 4 May 2012)
Mr P Stephansen (Former Chief Financial Officer) (Resigned 28 September

2012)

Mr W Wong (Non-executive Director) (Resigned 12 November 2012)

Details of share options held by the Directors are set out in the Report on

Remuneration

Substantial shareholdings

The only interests in excess of 3% of the issued share capital of the Group which have been notified as at

18 April 2013 were as follows

Ordinary
shares of Percentage
i 0.25p each of capital
Number Yo
M & G Investments 220,932,754 21 80
Herald Investment Management 152.373,325 1503
AXA Framlington 108.411,234 10 70
Imagination Technologies Limited 92,275.622 910
Cazenove Capital Management 335,300,925 348
Schroder Investment Management 34,703,423 342
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Payment to suppliers

It 1s the Group's policy to agree appropriate terms and conditions for its transactions with suppliers by
means ranging from standard terms and conditions to individually negotiated contracts and pay
suppliers according to agreed terms and conditions, provided that the supplier meets those terms and
conditions The Group does not have a standard or code dealing specifically with the payment of
suppliers

Group trade payabies at the year end amounted to 120 days purchases (2011- 72 days)
Employee involvement

The Group has continued 1ts practice of keeping employees informed of matters affecting them as
employees and the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Group

Ths 1s achieved through consultations with employees and regular staff meetings Employee share
option schemes have operated since 2003 and are open to all eligible employees Details of the varnous
share options ouistanding are given in note 22 of these accounts At 31 December 2012 33,691,945 share
options were outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of 5 24p

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration for all vacancies in
accordance with therr particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of employees becoming disabled.
every effort 1s made to retrain them in order that therr employment with the Group may continue It 1s the
policy of the Group that training. career development and promotion opportunities should be available to
all employees

Directors’ responsibilities

The Group was incorporated as a corporation i the Cayman Islands, which does not prescribe the
adoption of any particular accounting framework Accordingly, the Board have resolved that the Group
will follow International Fiancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs) when
preparing 1ts annual financial statements

The Directors prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing
these financial statements. the Directors are required to

* select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state whether apphicable accounting standards have been followed. subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume
that the Group will continue 1n business

The Durectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion
of the Group, for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are also responsible for the preparation of the Report of the Directors and other
information m the annual report
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In so far as the Directors are aware
s there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and

e  the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit mformation and to establish that the auditor 15 aware of that information

The Directors confirm that the accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are appropriate to the Group, have been consistentiy applied and are supported by reasonable prudent
Judgements and estimates All applicable accounting standards have been followed

The Directors are responstble for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Group website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparatton and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 1n other jurisdictions

Auditor

Grant Thomton UK LLP have expressed their willingness to continue 1n office A resolution to re-
appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

e
r/
/
L%
4

Jonathan Apps
Assistant Company Secretary

24 April 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Basis of preparation

The Board are committed to the principles of good governance and believe 1t is appropriate to share
this with our stakeholders We therefore set out below the key elements of our governance structure
and policies

Governance structure

The Group supports the concept of an effective Board leading and controlling the Group The Board
1s responsible for approving Group policy and strategy It meets on a regular basis. at least six times a
year, and has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to 1t for decision Management supply the
Board with appropriate and timely information and the Directors are free to seek any further
information they consider necessary All Directors have access to advice from the Company Secretary
and independent professional advice at the Group's expense

The Board consists of an executive Chairman and two executive directors, who hold the key
operatienal positions in the Group, and three non-executive directors, who bring a breadth of
experience and knowledge

Relations with shareholders

The Group values the views of its shareholders and recognises their interest in the Group's strategy and
performance The Annual General Meeting will be used to communicate with private investors and
they are encouraged to participate  The Directors will be available to answer questions Separate
resolutions will be proposed on each issue so that they can be given proper consideration and there
will be a resolution to approve the annual report and accounts

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for maintaining a strong system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group's assets and for reviewing its effectiveness The system of internal financial
control 1s designed to provide reasonable. but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss

An audit committee has been established and comprises three non-executive directors. C Batterham
(Chair), M Knight and Sir H Yassaie The Commuttee meets at least half yearly and 1s responsible for
ensuring that the financial performance of the Group 1s properly monitored and reported on, as well as
meeting the auditor and reviewing any reports from the auditor regarding accounts and internal control
systems

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function but has decided the size of the Group
does not Justify 1t at present  However, 1t wall keep the decision under annual review

Going concern
At 31 December 2012 the Group has net assets of £51 9m and net current assets of £14 1m. including
£15 3m of cash However, in order to meet their strategic ambitions the Board remains commutted to on-

going investment into the development of 1ts products As such the Group anticipates being cashflow
negative 11 the short term
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In order to assess the appropriateness of the going concern basis the Board have prepared detailed profit
and cashflow forecasts through to 31 December 2014 which incorporate the Group and 1ts subsidiary
undertakings as at 31 December 2012

The key assumptzons 1n preparing the forecasts are as follows

e Management have used their best efforts to predict revenues and gross margin from the core
business for the forecast period based on existing customer relationships and expectations for
developing new relationships in existing markets

* Revenues streams for new business hines have been modelled on a conservative basis with growth
rates reflecting the risk associated with new lines of business

o The Group's cost base 1s designed to support existing revenue streams and the development of
new chip programmes together with their expected deliverable dates This has been forecast
based on existing costs together with an estimate of forecast costs based on management's
experience Management 1s currently considering a number of cost saving mitiatives which would
further reduce the forecast expenditure on research and development, without himiting the quality
of 1ts product development

The Board are satisfied that whilst there are risk factors associated with any set of forecasts. due care has
been exercised 1n preparing them The Board notes that it continues to monitor 1ts product development
strategy and that, 1f a decision was made to enhance the development expenditure or to accelerate the
timing of planned development, additional funding may be required The Board 1s confident that should
further funding be required that the Group would be able to source this and that therefore 1t i1s appropriate
to prepare these accounts on a going concern basts
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REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Basis of preparation

The Board 1s committed to openness and transparency tn relation to the remuneration of the Directors
The report below sets out the key elements of the Group's policies 1n this respect. in order to provide
appropriate information to the shareholders

Directors' remuneration

The Board recognises that Directors' remuneration 1s of legitimate concern to shareholders The Group
operates within a competitive environment where performance depends on the individual contributions
of the Directors and employees and 1t believes in rewarding vision and innovation

Policy on executive Directors' remuneration

A separate remuneration committee has been established comprising the three non-executive directors,
S H Yossaie (chair}, C Batterham and Martin Knight

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice a year and 1s responsible for recommending to the
Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior management
and approving performance based remuneration The Remuneration Commttee also fulfils the role of
an options commuttee for the Employee Share Option Scheme and 1ts main duty n this context 1s to
approve the grant of options to relevant employees

The policy of the Board 1s to provide executive remuneration packages designed to attract, motivate and

retain Directors of the calibre necessary to mamntamn the Group's position and to reward them for
enhancing shareholder value and return It aims to provide suffictent levels of remuneration to do this.
but to avoid paying more than 1s necessary The remuneration wili also reflect the Director’s
responsibilities and contain incentives to deliver the Group's objectives

The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 15 as follows

2012 Fees and 2011 Fees and

Emoluments Emoluments

£'000 £7000
Sir Richard Sykes 17 13
Professor Christofer Toumazou 160 250
P Stephansen 84 77
S Grisard 5 10
M Knight 18 10
[ McWalter 5 10
W Wong 9 10
Paid to Imagination Technologies plc on behalf of Sir H Yossaie 18 10
A Sethill 140 -
J Apps 28 -
C Batterham 13 -
Total 497 390
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Pensions and benefits 1n kind

Included n the £160,000 paid to Professor Christofer Toumazou 1s £2,000 1n benefits in kind (2011
£1.000) Included in the salary of £140,000 paid to Anthony Sethill 1s £7,000 benefit in kind (2011
£N1]) The Directors did not participate 1n the Group's pension scheme and do not receive any
sigmificant benefits in kind

Bonuses

No amounts are payable to directors for bonuses in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 or 31
December 2011

Notice periods

Professor C Toumazou has a notice period of twelve months on either side Mr A Sethill has a service
agreement with a six months notice period on erther side Mr J Apps has a service agreement with a 3
month notice period for the first 12 months of appointment and 6 months thereatter on erther side

The non executive Directors have letters of appointment which are terminable on three months’ notice on
either side

Share option incentives

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. Professor C Toumazou had an interest in options over
1,683,835 Ordinary Shares which were granted to um on 3 November 2005 1n replacement of options
that he held over shares in Toumaz Technology Limited These options vested on 31 May 2006 and are
exercisable at an exercise price of 6 94 pence per share at any time before September 2015 On 18
September 2009 Professor C Toumazou was granted a further 1.622,000 options over Ordmary Shares
These latter options are exercisable at a price of 3 70 pence per share from 15 January 2010 and expire on
14 January 2017 Further on 21 January 2010 Professor C Toumazou was granted an additional 5,000,000
options over Ordinary Shares at 6 ) pence per share exercisable after 21 January 2010 which expire on 20
January 2020 25 January Professor C Toumazou was granted 6,000,000 options over Ordinary Shares at
£0 0025 each which expire on 10 January 2023 under the Group JSOP scheme The vesting of these
options for directors 15 conditional on the performance of the Group share price relative to the FTSE All
Share Index

On 3 May 2005, Mr P Stephansen was granted options over 1,000,000 Ordinary Shares These options
vested 1n April 2007 and are exercisable as to 500,000 at an exercise price of 10 0 pence per share and, in
respect of the balance, at an exercise price of 25 0 pence per share at any time before April 2015 These
options lapsed on Mr P Stephansen’s resignation from the Group On 18 September 2009 Mr P
Stephansen was granted a further 648,800 options over Ordinary Shares These latter options are
exercisable at a price of 3 70 pence per share from 15 January 2010 and expire on 14 January 2017 These
shares were exercised n full during 2012 Further on 21 January 2010 Mr P Stephansen was granted an
additional 3,000.000 options over Ordmary Shares at 6 0 pence per share exercisable after 21 January
2010 and expire on 20 January 2020 In addition, Mr P Stephansen who had been a director during the
year was awarded 1.000.000 options on 25 January 2013 which had immediate vesting and which must be
exercised within 12 months of the date of grant and have an exercise price of £0 0025
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On 21 January 2010 Sir R Sykes was granted 5,000,000 options over Ordinary Shares at 6 0 pence per
share exercisable after 21 January 2010 and which expire on 20 January 2020

On 21 January 2010 Mr M Kmight was granted 3,000.000 options over Ordinary Shares at 6 0 pence per
share exercisable after 21 January 2010 and which expire on 20 January 2020

On 18 September 2009 Mr I McWalter was granted 243,300 options over Ordinary Shares These shares
were exercised 1n full durmmg 2012

25 January 2013 Mr J Apps was granted 3.000,000 options over Ordinary Shares at £0 0025 each which
exptre on 10 January 2023 under the Group JSOP scheme The vesting of these options for directors 1s
conditional on the performance of the Group share price relative to the FTSE All Share Index

None of the other Directors had any interests in share options of the Group

Shares

At the 18 Apnl 2013 Professor C Toumazou held 13,184,895 shares
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TOUMAZ LIMITED

We have audited the group financial statements of Toumaz Limited for the vear ended 31 December
2012. which comprise the principal accounting policies, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
mcome, the consolidated statement of changes n equity. the consolidated statement of financial position.
the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes The financial reporting framewaork that has
been applied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members. as a body 1n accordance with paragraph 101
Companies Law (revision 2011) of the Cayman Islands Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body. for our audit
work. for this report. or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 15, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the group financial statements
n accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards requure us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement.
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the
annual report of Toumaz Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012 to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the group financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's affairs as
at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts loss for the year then ended 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Registered auditor

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
OXFORD
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was incorporated mm the Cayman Islands which do not prescribe the adoption of any
particular accounting framework The Board has therefore adopted and complied with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Umon (IFRS) The Company's shares are
listed on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange The principal accounting policies of the Group
are set out below

MEASUREMENT BASIS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by IFRS
for each type of asset. hability, income and expense The measurement bases are more fully described mn
the accounting policies below

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards and interpretations that are in 1ssue but not yet effective have been constdered but have no
impact on the Group's financial statements

GOING CONCERN

At 31 December 2012, the Group had net assets of £51 9m and net current assets of £14 1m, including
£15 3m of cash However, 1n order to meet their strategic ambitions the Board remains commutted to on-
going mvestment into the development of its products As such the Group anticipates being cashflow
negative n the short term

In order to assess the appropriateness of the going concern basis the Board have prepared detailed profit
and cashflow forecasts through to 31 December 2014 which incorporate the Group and its subsidiary
undertakings as at 31 December 2012

The key assumptions in preparing the forecasts are as follows

¢ Management have used their best efforts to predict revenues and gross margin from the core
busimess for the forecast period based on existing customer relationships and expectations for
developing new relationships 1n existing markets

» Revenues streams for new business lines have been modelled on a conservative basis with growth
rates reflecting the risk associated with new lines of business

* The Group's cost base 1s designed 1o support existing revenue streams and the development of
new chip programmes together with their expected deliverable dates This has been forecast
based on existing costs together with an estimate of forecast costs based on management's
experience Management 1s currently considering a number of cost saving mitiatives which would
further reduce the forecast expenditure on research and development, without limiting the quality
of 1ts product development

The Board are satisfied that whilst there are risk factors associated with any set of forecasts, due care has
been exercised due care i preparing them The Board notes that 1t continues to monitor its product
development strategy and that, if a decision was made to enhance the development expenditure or to
accelerate the timing of planned development, additional fundmng may be required The Board 1s
confident that should further funding be required that the Group would be able to source this and that
therefore it 1s appropriate to prepare these accounts on a going concern basis
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to the balance sheet date Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities The Group
obtains and exercises control through voting rights

Unrealised gams on transactions between the Group and 1ts subsidiaries are ehminated Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group

Acquisitions of subsidianes are accounted for using the acquisition method The acquisition method
involves the recogniion at fair value of all identifiable assets and lhabilities, mcluding contingent
habilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date. regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the
financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisiion The acquisition cost 18 caleulated as the sum of
the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the equity interests 1ssued and
excludes any transaction costs The acquisition cost includes the fair value of any assets or habilities
arising from contingent consideration arrangement On initial recognition, the assets and habilities of the
subsidiary are included n the consolidated balance sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement mn accordance with the Group accounting policies Goodwall 1s stated
after separating out identifiable intangible assets Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition

Where the Group’s interest in a subsidiary changes, but does not result in a change m control. that change
1s treated as an equity transaction Any difference between the carrymg value of the non-controlling
interest and the fair value of the consideration 1s recognised directly 1n equity

Where the consideration involves a contingent element. consideration 1s given as to whether this meets
the definition of equity a financial hability

Contingent consideration initially recognised as a financial hability 1n accordance with the Group's policy
15 subsequently remeasured at fair value through profit or loss until settled Contingent consideration
imtially recognised as equity 1s not subsequently remeasured

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss
and net assets that 15 not held by the Group The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests The non-controlling interest 1s accounted for using the proportion of net assets
method

Associates are those entities over which the Group 1s able to exert significant influence but which are
neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures Investments in associates are mitially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method Any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to
the Group’s share n the associate 15 not recognised separately and 1s included i the amount recogmised as
Investment in assoclates
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The carrying amount of the investment 1n associates 1s increased or decreased to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and 1ts associates and jont ventures are
chiminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities Where unrealised losses are elimuinated,
the underlying asset 1s also tested for impairment

REVENUE

Revenue, excluding VAT, comprises revenue arising from development contracts and the sale of
products

Development contracts are designed to meet the specific requirements of each customer Revenue on
such contracts Is recognised on a percentage to completion basis, calculated on costs incurred to date of
total expected costs. over the period from signing the agreement to customer acceptance that the contract
deliverables have been fulfilled However, when development contracts are such that invoices are only
raised on the completion of certain milestones. revenue 1s not recogmsed until 1t 1s certain those
milestones have been met

Royalty revenue 1s generated by the licensing of the Group's technologies to customers Revenue 15 only
recognised when the Group has performed all of 1ts obligations under the agreement and when the
revenues can be reliably measured

Income from licences 15 recognised based on the substance of the licence arrangement Where the Group
has no on-going obhigations under the licence agreement, the transaction 1s treated as a sale of goods and
revenues are recognised at the point at which the customer gains access to the hcenced technology Where
the Group has an on-going obligation to fulfil revenue will be recognised as those obligations are met and
related invorces will be accrued or deferred accordingly

In some mstances the Group will enter into multiple element arrangements In such mstances, the
consideration recetved 1s allocated to each separately 1dentifiable element, based on relative fair values

Revenue, excluding VAT, in respect of the sale of goods 1s recognised at the pont that goods are
despatched to and accepted by customers It 1s at this point that the customer assumes ownership of the
product and therefore substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are deemed to have transferred

GOODWILL

Goodwill, representing the excess of the fair value of consideration over the fair value of the Group's
share of the 1dentifiable net assets acquired. 1s capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment
Goodwill 1s carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses  Any excess in the net fair value of an
acquirer’s identifiable net assets over the cost of acquisition 1s recognised immediately after acquisttion in
profit and loss

TAXATION

Current ncome tax assets and/or labilities comprise those obligations to. or clams from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period. that are unpaid at the balance sheet date They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable result for the year All changes to current tax assets or habilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the total comprehensive loss
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Deferred taxes are calculated using the hability method on temporary differences This involves the
comparison of the carrying amounts of assets and habihities m the consohdated financial statements with
their respective tax bases However, deferred tax s not provided on the imtial recogmtion of goodwill,
nor on the nitial recognition of an asset or hability unless the related transaction 1s a business
combination or affects tax or accounting profit Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with
shares m subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 1s not provided 1f reversal of these temporary
differences can be controlled by the Group and 1t 1s probable the reversal will not occur in the foreseeable
future In addition, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits to the
Group are assessed for recogmtion as deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that 1t 1s probable that they will be able to be offset against future taxable income Deferred tax assets and
habilities are calculated, without discounting. at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective
period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Most changes in deferred tax assets or habilities are recognised as a component of tax expense 1n profit
and loss  Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to a change n value of assets or
liabilities that 1s recogmsed in other comprehensive income are charged or credited m other
comprehensive income, current and deferred tax that relates to items that are recogmised n equity 15
recognised directly 1n equity

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intellectual property rights, licence and development expenditure

The costs of creating and protecting internally generated intetlectual property, patents and know-how are
written-off to consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1n the period m which they are incurred 1f
they do not meet all of the following criteria

. the techmical feasibility of completing the asset so that 1t will be available for use or sale 1s
probable.

. it 1s the intention of management to complete the asset and use or sell it,

. the Group has the ability to use or sell the asset.

. it 1s probable the asset will generate future economic benefit for the Group,

. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete and use or sell the asset are
available. and

. the Group has the ability to measure rehably the expenditure attributable 1o the asset during 1ts

development

The costs of acquiring rights to the use of third party intellectual property are capitalised and, subject to
impairment reviews, amortised over the esimated economic life of the intellectwal property concerned
Amortisation 1s calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less 1ts estimated residual value on a
straight line basis over the useful economic life of the asset as follows

Intellectual property rights - 4to 12 vears
Licence and development fees - over the life of the asset
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Prepaid royalties and maintenance agreements

Prepaid royalties and maintenance agreements are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as the underlying assets are utihsed In respect of royalties this 1s when the related goods are
sold For maintenance agreements this 1s rateably over the life of the agreement.

Assets acquired as part of a business combination

An intangible asset acquired 1n a business combmation 1s deemed to have a cost to the Group of its fair
value at the acquisition date The fair value of the intangible asset reflects market expectations about the
probabihty that the future economic benefits embodied 1n the asset will flow to the Group The fair value
15 then amortised over the economic life of the asset Where an intangible asset might be separable, but
only together with a related tangible or intangible asset, the Group of assets 1s recognised as a single asset
separately from goodwill where the individual fair values of the assets in the Group are not reliably
measurable Where the individual fair value of the complementary assets are reliably measurable. the
Group recognises them as a single asset provided the individual assets have similar useful lives

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately 1dentifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level Group management have determined
that cash-generating units. to which goodwill can be allocated, are equivalent to its operating segments
Goodwill 1s allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
related business combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which management
monitor goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment at least annually All other individual assets or cash-generating units
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income for the amount by which the
asset or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable amount
1s the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on an
mnternal discounted cash flow evaluation Impairment losses recognised are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill Any remaining impairment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets n the
cash generating unit With the excepuion of goodwill. all assets are subsequently reassessed for
indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist An impairment loss 1s
reversed 1f there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset's carrymng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determimed, net of amortisation, i1f no impairment loss had been recognised
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group's financial assets mclude cash and trade and other receivables. which are classified as loans
and recervables

All financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
mstrument  All financial assets are initially recogmised at fair value. plus transaction costs

Trade and other receivables are provided aganst when objective evidence 15 received that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due to 1t in accordance with the original terms of the receivables The
amount of the wnite-down 1s determined as the difference between the asset’s carrymg amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual nights to the cashflows from the financial assets
expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all of the associated risks and rewards have
transferred

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank demand deposits. together with other short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an nsignificant risk of changes m value with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition

EQUITY
The share capital 15 determmed using the nommal value of shares that have been 1ssued

The share premium account represents premiums received on the initial 1ssuing of the share capital Any
transaction costs associated with the 1ssuing of shares are deducted from share premium. net of any
related income tax benefits

The share based payment reserve represents the cumulative amount which has been expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in connection with equity settled share based payments,
less any amounts transferred to the profit and loss account on the exercise of share options

Retained earntngs mclude all current and prior period results as disclosed 1n the consolidated statement of
COI]’]pI'BhE,‘-I’ISI\"C meome

Where, as part of a business combination, the Group enters into an agreement which includes a contingent
element that 1s classified as equity, these amounts are fair valued at the date of the acquisition and held in
a separate equity reserve These amounts are not subsequently remeasured but are transferred to share
capital and share premium on settlement of the contingent constderation

The foreign exchange reserve represents the unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses in the Group's
overseas subsidianes
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

All share based payment arrangements are recognised i the financial statements The Group operates
equity-settled share based remuneration plans for remuneration of 1ts employees

All services received 1n exchange for the grant of any share-based remuneration are measured at their fair
values These are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share options/warrants
awarded Their fair value 1s appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example. profitability and sales growth targets)

Share based payments are ultimately recogmised as an expense in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding credit to the share based payment reserve, net
of deferred tax where applicable If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense 15
allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options are
expected to vest Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable Estimates are subsequently revised. if there 1s any indication
that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates No adjustment 1s made
to the expense or share 1ssue cost recognised in subsequent periods if fewer share options ultimately are
exercised than originally estimated

Upon exercise of share options/warrants, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the shares 1ssued are allocated to share capital with any excess being
recorded as share premium

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other pavables Financial habilities are obligations to
pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provistons of the instrument

All financial habilities are recognised initially at fair value. net of direct 1ssue costs, and are subsequently
recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method with interest related charges recognised as
an expense 1n consohdated statement of comprehensive mcome

A financial hability 15 derecognised when 1t ts extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires

Where the Group enters into a contractual arrangement which may settled either through the 1ssue of
equity or a cash payment consideration 1s given as to whether the arrangement should be classified as
equity or as a llability Such arrangements are treated as equity 1f an only 1f the following criteria are met

+ the Group has the ability to avoid settling the obligation in cash,
¢ the Group can settle the obligation by 1ssuing a fixed number of shares

Where both criteria are not met the obligation 1s treated as a financial habihity and inmitially recognised at
fair value Subsequent changes in the fair value are recogmsed m total comprehensive income for that
period Where the effects of discounting the payments are matenal, this 1s taken into consideration n the
initia]l measurement The subsequent unwinding of this discount 1s treated as a finance expense 1n total
comprehensive income over the term of the obligation

29Page



TOUMAZ LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
1 Measurement bases

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

The cost of an asset comprises 1ts purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the working condition and location for its intended use  Subsequent expenditure relating to property.
plant and equipment 1s added to the carrying amount of the assets only when 1t 1s probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the period m which they are incurred

When assets are sold. any gan or loss resulting from their disposal, being the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, 1s included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income account

it Depreciation

Depreciation 15 calculated so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less its
estimated residual value, which 1s revised annually, over its useful economic life as follows

Leasehold improvements - 33 3% straight line
Office equipment - 33 3% straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 25%  straight line
Computer equipment - 33 3% straight line
LEASED ASSETS

The economic ownership of a leased asset 15 transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all
the risks and rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset The related asset 1s then recognised at
the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the lease
payments plus incidental payments, if any A corresponding amount 1s recognised as a finance leasing
hability, irrespective of whether some of these lease payments are payable up-front at the date of
mception of the lease Leases of land and buildings are classified separately and are split into a land and a
building element, in accordance with the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the date the asset
1s recognised mially

Depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under finance lease agreements correspond to those
applied to comparable assets which are legally owned by the Group The corresponding finance leasing
lability 1s reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are expensed as part of finance costs

The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance
outstanding and 15 charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
lease All other leases are treated as operating leases Payments on operating lease agreements are
recogmised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term Associated costs, such as
maintenance and nsurance, are expensed as incurred
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all costs incurred in
bringing each product to 1ts present location and condition, which comprises the cost of direct matenals
and third party charges Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course of
business less any applicable selling expenses

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds Entrants into this scheme are
entitled to have a percentage of their basic salary paid into the scheme by the Group These contributions
are charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an employee benefit expense 1n
respect of the accounting period in which they become payable

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The consohidated financial statements are presented in UK Sterling, which 1s also the functional currency
of the parent company Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the
respective Group entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot
exchange rate) Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the remeasurement of monetary items at year-end exchange rates are recognised n profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction (not retranslated) In the Group's financial statements, all assets. liabihities and transactions of
Group entities with a functional currency other than UK Sterling are translated into UK Sterling upon
consolidation The functional currency of the entities in the Group has remained unchanged during the
reporting period

On consolidation. assets and habilities have been translated into UK Sterling at the closing rate at the
reporting date Income and expenses have been translated into the Group's presentation currency at the
average rate over the reporting period which 1s deemed to be a reasonable approximation of the actual
rate Exchange differences are charged/credited to other comprehensive income and accumulated 1n the
foreign exchange reserve in equity Goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on the acquisition of a
foreagn entity have been treated as assets and habihities of the foreign entity and translated into UK
Sterling at the closing rate

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

In idenufying its operating segments, Group management follows the Group reporting structure which
represents the development and exploitation of its products and the overall control of operations The
Group currently reports three segments

Toumaz Healthcare - Toumaz Healthcare Limuted 15 targeting the Healthcare market

Digital Radio/ Connected Audio — This division includes Toumaz Microsystems Limited and the newly
acquired Frontier Silicon Group Toumaz Microsystems Limited was established to design, develop and
sell wireless semiconductor chips and embedded solutions for the growing area of mternet and cloud-
connected applications Toumaz Microsystems Limited 15 tasked with the explottation of the Group's
activities in the wireless connectivity market Frontier Silicon Group was acquired during the year and the
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main focus of this division 1s the development, manufacture and sale of digital radio and internet radio
technologies

Group costs - Toumaz Limited’s responsibilities are the overall management of the portfolio companies
providing finance. Group strategy and corporate governance guidance

Each of the segments are managed separately requirng different management, resources and marketing
approaches

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under IFRS 8 are the same as those used
In Its management reporting

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors. including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances

() Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a
sigmficant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within
the next accounting year are discussed below

Business combinations

On mitial recognition, the assets and habilities of the acquired business are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their fair values In particular, the fair value of contingent consideration
1s dependent on the outcome of certain future results In measuring fair value, management uses estimates
about future cash flows and discount rates. however, the actual results may vary Any measurement
changes from initial recognition would affect the measurement of goodwill Goodwill calculated on
business combinations 1s shown n note 6

In addition. judgement 1s also required in order to determine whether contingent consideration meets the
definition of a financial liability or equity In the current year management have considered the terms
assoctated with the various tranches of contingent consideration which may be payable as a result of that
acquisition Based on this assignment. management have split the consideration between equity and
financial liabilities as can be seen in note 6

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group conducts annual impairment reviews of assets when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, or in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards An impairment loss 1s recogmsed when the carrymg amount of an asset s higher
than the greater of 1ts net selling price or the value i use In determining the value 1n use, management
assesses the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of
the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life Estimates and judgments are applied m
determiming these future cash flows and the discount rate These assumptions relate to future events and
circumstances The actual results may vary, and may cause adjustments to the Group's assets in future
financial years Details of the estimates and assumptions made n respect of the potential imparrment of
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intellectual property, goodwill on consolidation, nterests in joint venture and interests in associate are
detailed in notes 6, 7 and 9 to the financial statements

The Directors considered the applicability of the discount rate of 20% for the Healthcare & Microsystems
divisions, used in previous years to measure impamrment. Toumaz appownted an independent valuer to
allocate the purchase price of Frontier Silicon 1n accordance with IFRS 3 and IAS38 This valuation used
a discount factor of 17% for Frontier Silicon

Valuations of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted 15 calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model, which
requires the input of subjective assumptions. including the volatility of share price

Details of the inputs are set out 1n note 22 to the financial statements
Internally generated software and research costs

Management momitors progress of mternal research and development projects by using a project
management system Significant judgement 15 required 1n distinguishing research from the development
phase Development costs are recognised as an asset when all the criteria of IAS 38 are met, whereas
research costs are expensed as incurred

Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can be utilised 1s
based on the Group's latest approved budget forecast, which 1s adjusted for sigmificant non-taxable
mcome and expenses and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit The tax rules in the
numerous jurisdictions m which the Group operates are also carefully taken into consideration If a
positive forecast of taxable income ndicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset, especially when 1t
can be utilised without a time limit, that deferred tax asset 1s usually recogmsed n full The recognition of
deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties 1s assessed
individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances

Adoption of new or amended IFRS

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authormsation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Group Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted 1n the
Group's accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effecuve date of the pronouncement
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the
Group’s financial statements 1s provided below although these are not expected to have a material impact

The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Commuttee (IFRIC) The Group’s approach to these 1s as follows
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New standards and interpretations currently n 1ssue but not effective for accounting periods commencing
on 1 January 2012 are

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2015)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2014)

IFRS 11 Jomt Arrangements {(effective | January 2014)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective | January 2014)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective 1 January 2013)

1AS 19 Emplovee Benefits (Revised June 2011) (effective 1 January 2014)

TAS 27 (Revised), Separate Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013)

IAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January 2013)
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments to IAS 1 (effective 1 July
2012)

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 (effective 1 January
2014)

Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures - Amendments to IFRS 9 and 1FRS 7 (effective
| January 2015)

Transition Guidance - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and [FRS 12 (effective 1 January 2013)
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 1 8,767 2,309
Cost of sales (4,766) (1,492)
Gross profit 4,001 817
lAmortisation of intangible assets 8 (2.083) (1,421)
[mpairment 2 (10.151) -
Depreciation 9 (239) (101)
Share based payment (51) (52)
Research & development (6,448) (3.230)
Professional fees on acquisition (569) -
Sales & admmmstrative expenses - other (6,211) (3.363)
Total administrative expenses (25,752) (8.167)
Loss from continuing operations {21,751) (7,350)
Fiance income 3 115 6
Loss hefore taxation 1 (21,636) (7,344)
Taxation 4 1,317 617
Loss for the year (20,319) 6,727)
Exchange differences on translating foreign 37 (52)
operations
QOther comprehensive income 37 (52)
Total comprehensive income for the vear (20,356) (6,779)
Basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the parent 5 (2.19p (1.06)p
Diluted loss per share attributable to owners
of the parent 2.19p (1.06)p
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Loss for year attributable to :
Non- controlling interest - (125)
Owners of the parent (20,319) (6,602)
(20,319) (6,727)
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Non- controlling interest - (125)
Owners of the parent (20,356) (6,654)
(20,356) 6,779

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwil!

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interest 1n associates

Other Non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Tax recervable

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Current habilities
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities

Total habilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Contingent consideration
Share premium

Share based payment reserve
Foreign exchange reserve
Retained earnings

Reserves attributable to owners of the parent

Non-controlling interest

Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

Note

=R =- BN |

11

12

13
14

15

16

2012 2011
£2000 £2000
19,118 16,533
17,742 6,637
665 152
- 11
37,525 23,333
221 1,434
1,804 335
1,598 618
3,250 2,017
15,265 2,174
21,917 5,144
59,663 29,911
7,780 1,847
7,780 1,847
7,780 1,847
2,838 1,574
1,081 .
98,034 51,263
1,916 1,857
(156) (119)
(51,830) (31,386)
51,883 23,189
- 4,875
51,883 28,064
59,663 29,911

37TiPage



TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the year ended 31 December 2012

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board on 24 April 2013

J Apps
Director

The accompanying principal accounting policies and notes form an ntegral part of these financial
statements
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

Share
based Foreign Non-

Share  Contingent Share payment Retained exchange controlling Total
capital consideration premium reserve  earnings reserve interest equity
£'000 £7000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

At | January 2011 1.484 - 48,463 1,805 (24,784) (67) - 26,901

Share-based payments - - 52 - - - 52

Issue of share capatal 90 3072 - - - - 3,162

Non-controlling interest —

mvestment tn subsidiary - - - - - - 5,000 5,000

Cost of share 1ssue - - (272) - - - - (272)

Transactions with owners 90 2,800 52 - - 5,000 7,942

Loss for the vear - - - - (6,602) - (125) 6,727

Other comprehensive

losses

Exchange differences on

translating foreign operanons - - - - - {52) - (52)

Total comprehensive loss - - - - (6,602) {(82) (125} (6,779

At I January 2012 1,574 - 51,263 1,857 (31,386) (119) 4,875 28,064

Share-based payvments - - 59 - - - 59

Issue of share capital 1.121 - 42,213 - - - - 43,334

Non-controlling interest —

acquistition of non-

controlling interest through

1ssue of equity 1n parent 143 - 4,857 - (586) - (4,414) -

Cost of share 15sue - - (299) - - - - (299}

Contingent consideration - 1,081 1,081

Transactions with owners 1.264 1,081 46,77 59 (586) - (4,414) 44,175

Loss for the vear - - - - (19,858} - 461y (20,319}

Other comprehensive

losses

Exchange differences on - - - - - (37) - (37)

translating foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss - - - - (19,858) (37 (161)  (20,356)
2,838 1,081 98.034 1,916 (51,830) {156) - 51,883

At 31 December 2012
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TOUMAZ LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note £000 £°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation (21,636) (7,344)
Amortisation 2,083 1421
Depreciation 239 101
Goodwill impairment 5,951 -
Impairment of other intangible assets 3,299 -
Impairment of prepayments 901 -
Share based payments 59 52
Net interest recervable (115) {6)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 925 (214)
Decrease/ (increase} 1n trade and other
recervables 2,041 (1,115)
Decrease 1n non current debtors 313 -
Debtor - investment in subsidiary - 500
(Decrease)increase 1n trade and other payables (2,231) 875
Other foreign exchange movements 211 (23]
Tax refund 386 682
Non cash flow movement m respect of
associates 11 (11)
Net cash outflow from sperating activities (7,563) (3,111)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 237) (39)
Purchase of ntangible assets {1 -
Interest received 115 6
Cash from non-controlling parties- investment
n subsidiary - 1,500
Acqusition of subsidiaries, net of cash 6 (14,026) -
Net cash used 1n investing activities (14,219) 1,467
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital 40,421 3,162
Share 1ssue costs (299) (272)
Loan Notes repaid (5,249 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 34,873 2,890
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 13,091 (754)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
period 2,174 2,928
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
period 14 15,265 2,174

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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REVENUE, LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue and loss before taxation

Revenue and loss before taxation are attributable to the principal activities of the Group

The loss before taxation 1s stated after charging

2012 2011
£°000 £000
Share based payment expense 51 52
Staff costs 5,637 3,855
Research and development costs written off 6,448 3,230
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,083 1,421
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 239 101
Goodwill impairment 5,951 -
Impairment of intangible assets 3,299 -
Impairment of prepayments 900 -
Foreign exchange gains and losses 155 52
Operating leases land and buildings 637 211
Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of
the Company financial statements 41 32
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services
- audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to the
legislation 49 24
- taxation services 16 22
Revenue by geographic location
2012 2011
£000 £7000
Umited States and North America 721 1,061
Europe 175 881
Asia 7.871 367
Total revenue 8.767 2,309
Assets and habilities by geographic location
Assets Liabilities
2012 2011 2012 2011
£°000 £7000 £°000 £000
Cayman Islands 8,057 406 85 89
Europe 51,303 29,252 7,520 1,454
Asia 303 253 175 304
59,663 29,911 7,780 1,847
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Segmental information

As described under Segmental Reporting m the Principal Accounting Policies. Management currently

tdentifies three divisions as operating segments

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Amortisation of intellectual property
Depreciation

Share based payment

[mpairment

Research & development

Professional fees on acquisition

Sales & administrative expenses — other

Total admmistrative expenses

Loss from continuing operations

Finance mcome

Loss before taxation

Segment assefs
Segment liabilities

Toumaz Digital Radio/  Group Total

Healthecare Connected Costs
Audio

£000 £°000 £°000 £000

366 8,401 - 8,767

(213) (4,553) - (4,766)

153 3,848 - 4,001

- (526) (1,357) (2,083)

(82) (157) - (239)

- - (31) (51)

- (10,151) - (10,151)

(1,540) (4,908) . (6,448)

- - {569) (569)

{2,007 (3,545) (659) (6,211)

(3,629) (19,287) (2,836) (25,752)

(3,476) (15,439) (2,836) (21,751)

- 15 100 115

- 15 100 115

(3,476) (15,424) (2,736) (21,636)

12,078 38,733 8,852 59,663

410 4,508 2,862 7,780

Included 1n revenues 1n the Digital Radio/ Connected Audio segment for the vear ended 31 December
2012 are revenues of £1 7m from the largest customer and £1 2m from its second largest customer
and £1 1m from 1ts third largest customer Together these represent 48% of the reported divisional
revenue for the year and 47% of the total Group revenue for the vear
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Amortisation of ntellectual property
Depreciation

Share based payment

Research & development
Admimstrative expenses — other

Total administrative expenses

Loss from continuing operations

Finance income

Loss before taxation

Segment assets
Segment habilities

Toumaz Digital Radio/  Group Total

Healthcare Connected Costs
Audio

£2000 £2000 £000 £000

1,831 467 11 2,309

(1,091) (401) - (1,492)

740 66 11 817

(442) (88) (891) (1,421)

(67) (34) - (101)

- . (52) (52)

{2,260) (970) - (3,230)

{2.,451) (489) (423) (3,363)

{5,220) (1,581) (1,366) (8,167)

(4,480) (1,515) {1,355) {7,350)

- - 6 6

- - 6 6

(4,480) (1,515) (1,349) (7,344)

12,328 14,665 2,918 29,911

1,091 667 89 1,847

Included 1n revenues in the Toumaz Healthcare segment for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
revenues of £0 6m from the largest customer and £0 6m from 1ts second largest customer and £0 4m
from 1ts third largest customer Together these represent 89% of the reported divisional revenue for
the year and 70% of the total Group revenue for the year
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IMPAIRMENT
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Impairment of goodwaill 5,951 -
Impairment of other intangtble assets 3,299 -
Impairment of prepayments 901 -
10,151 -

During the year the Board has reviewed the carrving value of 1ts intangible assets as required by
IAS38 As a result of this review the following actions have been taken in the Digital Radio/
Connected Audio segment

The Group acquured Future Waves Limited on 20 May 2009 and reported goodwill on consolidation
of £6m and a further amount of £2 8m in respect of the intellectual property that it owned
Subsequently the group acquired further licences and other Intellectual Property to support this part of
the business Following the review of these assets durmg the year the Board has written off the
remaining unamortised carrving value of these assets In the Board’s view the intellectual property,
licences and goodwill relate to design processes and techniques that have been superseded by a
combination of technological advances in chip design during the current year and replacement
technologies acquired with Frontier Silicon and therefore are no longer of ongoing value to the
company

Toumaz Microsystems Limited has reported assets 1n respect of licences and prepayments in use on
existing chips In the Board’s view these chips are nearing end of life or will be superseded by new
development The Board have decided to impair these licences by £2m and the prepayments by
£0 9m to reflect the value of expected future sales As at 31 December 2012 the balance remaining on
the prepayments 1s £0 4m

Toumaz Microsystems Limited will continue to trade and will continue development work on new
generation chips However, the uncertainty over the value of these future developments means the
carrymg value of its intangible assets and associated goodwill cannot be supported for reasons
identified above

FINANCE INCOME
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Bank interest recervable 115 6
115 6
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4 TAXATION

The tax credit for the year 1s as follows

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 24 3% (2011 26 5%) - -
UK research and development tax credit — current vear (980) (618)
UK research and development tax credit in the prior year (386) 1
Foreign tax paid 49 -
(1,317) (617)

The tax assessed for the period differs from the standard rate of corporation tax 1n the UK as follows

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Loss before tax ; (21,636) (7,344)
Loss multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) (5,301) (1,946)
Effect of
Disallowable expenses 2,672 500
Depreciation 1n excess of capital allowances 17 27
Research and development tax credit adjustment (980) (618)
Under-provision 1n the prior year (386) 1
Losses not utilised 2,624 1,419
Research and development enhanced deductions (1,149) -
Effect of losses surrendered for R&D credit 1,137 -
Other adjustments/ foreign tax paid 49 -
Current tax credrt for year (1,317) (617)

The Group has tax losses in the UK of approximately £39 5 million (2011 £24 4 million) available
for offset against future operating profits The Group has not recognised any further deferred tax
asset n respect of these or any other of the Group’s losses The losses are still to be agreed with
the UK tax authorities It 1s anticipated that the losses will be available for offset against future
profits However, there 1s uncertainty over the foreseeable future and therefore a deferred tax asset
has not been recognised in respect of these additional losses

A deferred tax lrabihity arises on the intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisition of the
group headed by Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Limited of approximately £3 9m At that time the
group headed by Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Limited had accumulated trading losses which would
have resulted in a deferred tax asset in excess of these amounts Given that these amounts would
be expected to be settled at the same time at the liability, an asset 1n respect of these losses has
been recognised to an equal value of the potential hability Given the Group has a night and the
ability to settle these amounts at the same time, the asset and liabihity have been offset n these
financial statements

.
L
-
[

Ui
[



5

[

TOUMAZ LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

L.OSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share of 2 19p (2011 1 06p) 1s based on the loss after tax of
£203m (2011 £6 7m) divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue durtng

the year of 927.984,462 (2011 624,072,722)

Due to the losses incurred the impact of the share options and other potential shares 1n anti-

dilutive As such the diluted earnings per share equals the ordinary earnigs per share

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 20 August 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the equity instruments of Frontier Silicon
{Holdings) Limited (“Frontier™), a UK based business, thereby obtaining control The acquisition
was made to enhance the Group’s position in the digital radio market, and to explort the software

systems, commercial expertise and tier one customer access of Frontier

The details of the business combination are as follows

Fair value of consideration transferred
Amount settled n cash

Amount settled 1n equity

Contingent consideration treated as equity

Contingent consideration treated as a financial hability

TOTAL

Recogmsed amounts of identifiable net assets

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Recognised Intangible assets on acquisition

Total non-current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Total current Liabilities

Identifiable net assets

Goodwill on acquisition (note 7)

Consideration transferred settled in cash
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Net cash outflow on acquisition
Acquisition costs charged to expenses
Net cash paid relating to the acquisition

£2000
24,657
1.858
1,081
2,905

30,501

£000
538
523
15.893

16,954

2.395
2,494
10,631

15,520

(5,260)
(5,249)

(10,509)

21,965

8,536

24.657
(10.631)

14,026
369

14,595
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The acquisition of Frontier was settled 1n cash amounting to £24.657,000, plus £1,858.000 settled
in shares The purchase agreement included contingent consideration with an expected value of
£3,986,000 £1.081,000 of the deferred consideration will be settled by a fixed number of shares
in Toumaz Limited in 2013. 2014 and 2015 1f revenue exceeds set targets The amount shown in
reserves represents the fair value of the shares that are expected to be 1ssued in settlement of the
deferred constderations, as assessed at the date of the acquisition The remainder of the deferred
consideration, being £2,905,000, will be settled 1n cash and therefore 1s accounted for as a
financial habthity and 1s disclosed within other payables

Acquisition-related costs amounting to £569,000 are not included as part of consideration
transferred and have been recognised as part of other expenses 1n the total comprehensive income
for the year

Goodwill

Goodwiil of £8,536.000 1s primarily related to growth expectations, expected future profitability,
tier one customer access, the substantial skill and expertise of Frontier’s workforce and expected
cost synergies

Frontier’s contribution to the Group results
Frontier incurred a loss of £307,000 for the 4 months and 10 days from 20 August 2012 to the
reporting date, which has been mcluded n the Group result

If Frontier had been acquired on 1 January 2012, revenue of the Group for 2012 would have been
£22m, and loss for the year would have been greater by £2 Sm

GOODWILL
Frontier Toumaz Toumaz  Total
Silicon Healthcare Microsystems
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
At | January 2010 - 10,582 5,951 16,533
Additions - - - -
At 31 December 2011 - 10,582 5,951 16,333
Acquisition of Frontier Sihicon 8,536 - - 8,536

Impairment

At 1 January 2010 - - - -
Charge 1n the year - - - -
At 31 December 2011 - - - -
Charge in the year - - - -
Impairment m the year - - 5,951 5,951
At 31 December 2012 N i 5.951 5.951

2N{;31t2hook amount at 31 December 8,536 10,582 ) 19,118
2N{;::lt ]book amount at 31 December ) 10,582 5,951 16,533
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Goodwill relating to Toumaz Healthcare results from the acquisition of Toumaz Healthcare Limited
on 3 November 2005 Goodwill relating to Frontier Silicon results from the acquisition of the Frontier
Silicon group on 21 August 2012 (note 6)

There 1s considerable cross over and exchange of knowledge, intellectual property and the application
and use of products between the cash generating units The expertise and know-how of the Group as a
whole provides a platform for all of its products The customer access, supply chain and technical
knowhow acquired with Frontier will be used across the Group

All principal operating divisions incurred losses in the year ended 31 December 2012, which 1s an
indicator of impairment The Directors have tested the aggregate recoverable value of goodwill.
specific intellectual property, and hcence & development fees for impairment n accordance wath the
Group's accounting policy of testing annually for impairment Recoverable value 1s assessed by value
in use The Directors have impaired part of the goodwill relating to Digital Radio and Connected
audio segment for the reasons set out below The Directors, 1n assessing the recoverabihty of the
remaining amount have considered the technical feasibility of the technology and the opportunities for
commercial exploitation, including the positton with the current commercial relationships

To determine the value n use. the Directors have produced detailed monthly profit and loss and cash
flow forecasts for the two years ended December 2014 and annual profit and loss forecasts for the
seven vears to December 2018 A seven year forecast period 1s considered reasonable for the markets
that the Company addresses, particularly given the stage of development of the Group’s products and
expected life of new technologies

Toumaz Healthcare

The above average growth rates of revenue for Toumaz Healthcare used n the projections are
based on the Directors’ considered estimates in a developing market and include significant
estimates of both the volume and individual value of sales The introduction of new and untested
“disruptive technology™ mto the market place exposes the Group to the risk that costly
developments will take longer than planned or not achieve the forecast financial returns  Should
these estimates not be achieved there s a risk these assets will be impaired

Consistent with 2011. a discount rate of 15% has been applied to the aggregate results of the
forecast The Directors considered the applicability of a discount rate of 20% and are satisfied that
even If that rate were to be applied, the carrying value of the Healthcare goodwill 1s justified

The key assumptions with regard to the revenues and profitability of the cash generating units used m
testing the aggregate recoverable value of goodwill. specific intellectual property. and licence &
development fees for impairment are as follows

e The hfe cycle of any product introduced into the Healthcare market will be 1n the order of 7 to 10
years whilst 1t 1s first being tested. then gammg adoption and finally being fully rolled out
Revenues are expected to be recorded from 2014 and mcrease over the remainder of the planning
horrzon based on expectations of sales volumes and price The forecast model 1s buiht on the
Directors’ best estimates of addressable market and the Company s resultant share of that
market

e Further products. based on the Sensim® chip and related technology, are forecast A licence and
development agreement has already been signed for sport and fithess related products
Commercial launch 1s expected during the second half of the year Other applications based on a
rechargeable Sensium® plaster will be developed
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Digital radio and connected audio - Toumaz Microsystems

Following a review of this part of the business the goodwill has been written off for the reasons set
out 1n note 2

Digital radio and connected audio - Frontier Silicon

The intangible assets of Frontier Silicon have been independently valued and the difference between
the fair value of the net assets and the fair value of the consideration 15 treated as goodwill

Deferred tax has not been provided on the above intangible assets on the basis that the Group has
sufficient tax losses available to offset any taxable gain that might arise The basis for this 1s set out in
note 4

Whulst Frontier has continued to make losses post acquisition this 15 in line with the forecasts at the
time of the acquisition and therefore the directors consider the Goodwill arising on consohdation as
still valid and no impairment has occurred smce acquisition The long term performance of Frontier 1s
expected to be in line with the expectations made at the time of acquisition In accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy goodwill and intellectual property will be tested annually for impaiwrment

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Marketing  Customer

ntellectual intellectual Other Licence &
property property intellectual development
property fees Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2011 - - 6,806 4,243 11,049
Additions - - - 1,252 1,252
At 31 December 2011 - - 6,806 5,495 12,301
Additions - - - 71 71
Recognised on acquisition 4,000 1,690 10,203 8,912 24,805
At 31 December 2012 4,000 1,690 17,009 14,478 37,177
Amortisation
At 1 January 2011 - - 3,403 840 4,243
Charge n the year - - 89 530 1,421
At 31 December 2011 - - 4,294 1,370 5,664
Charge n the year 133 47 1,377 526 2,083
Recognised on acquisition - - - 8,389 8,389
Impairment - - 1,312 1,987 3,299
At 31 December 2012 133 47 6,983 12,272 19,435
Net book amount at 31 3,867 1,643 10,026 2,206 17,742
December 2012
Net book amount at 31 - - 2,512 4,125 6,637

December 2011
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Intellectual property

Intellectual property at 1 January 2012 relates to the valuation of beneficial licence agreements, trade
names and customer relationships in Toumaz Healthcare and Toumaz Microsystems at the date of
ther original acquisition The remaining hife of the Toumaz Healthcare asset 1s approximately one
year and for Toumaz Microsystems this has been written down to zero following a review of the
likely cash flows generated by this chip The addition during the year relates to the technology fair
value associated with the Frontier Silicon acquisition

Licence & development fees

At 1 January 2012 licence & development fees related to an agreement, dated 14 May 2009, with
Imagination Technologies Group plc to hicense a next generation communication and digital radio
multimedia IP platform The consideration for the hicense deal consisted of a number of payments
scheduled over the duration of the Group's development projects The remaining life of this asset 1s
five vears The additions in the year relate to technology on new projects essential to the future
development of the new generation digital chips The licences will be amortised in accordance with
the Group accounting policy and will be subject to an annual impatrment review

Marketing

Marketing-related intangible assets are defined as those assets that are primarily used in the marketing
or promotion of products and services The Frontier solutions are well known and preferred by a
majority of the consumer electronic brands who specifically mstruct their manufacturers to use
Frontier modules and solutions in their audio systems

Customer relationships
Customer-related intangible assets may consist of customer lists, order or production backlogs,
customer contracts and relationships. and non-contractual customer relationships Frontier has

developed relattonships with both consumer electronic brands and manufacturers The customer
relationship valuation captures the economic benefits of having these trading relationships

Impairment reviews

The Directors have tested all intangible assets for impairment in conjunction with their testing for
Goodwill, in accordance with the Group's accounting policy (see note 7 for details)
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures
Leasehold Plant and Office and Computer
improvements machinery equipment fittings equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At | January 2011 165 - 72 123 253 613
Additions 12 - - 3 24 39
Disposals @) - - 3) (2) (7
At 31 December 2011 175 - 72 123 275 645
Addstions - 21 16 99 100 237
Recognised on acquisition - 1,595 - 2,120 580 4,295
Disposals - - - (%94) (76) a70)
At 31 December 2012 175 1,617 88 2,248 879 5,007
Depreciation
At 1 January 2011 82 - 56 100 161 399
Charge 1n the year 32 - 7 19 43 101
Disposals () - - 3) (2) &)
At 31 December 2011 112 - 63 116 202 493
Charge 1n the year 33 47 9 94 54 239
Recognised on acquisition - 1,361 - 1,828 567 3,756
Disposals - - (94) (52) (146)
At 31 December 2012 147 1,408 72 1,944 771 4,342
Net book amount
At 31 December 2012 28 209 16 304 108 665
At 31 December 2011 63 - 9 7 73 152

All depreciation 1s included 1n “Administrative expenses — other™ 1n the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

2012 2011
£2000 £2000
Interest 1n associates - 11

Interest in associates represented a 10% holding in Cloud Tag Inc (formerly Toumaz Active Inc) a
company registered in the Cayman Islands In 2011 Toumaz Healthcare Limited had signed hicense
and product development agreements covering the development and explottation. 1n certain territories.
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of products for the sports and fitness related markets This imvestment was disposed of in September
2012 for £1

11  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2012 2011
£°000 £000
Prepaid royalties and maitenance agreements 221 1,434

The prepaid royalties and mantenance agreements reflect the non-current portion of the amounts
prepaid greater than one year consequent on the signing of the Shareholders” Agreement between
Toumaz Limited and Imagination Technologies Group plc

These amounts will be released to the profit and loss account 1n e with the rendering of the associated
services In respect of the maintenance services this will be on a straight Iine basis over the service

period The pre-paid royalties will be released as the related products are sold to customers

The fair value of non-current assets has not been disclosed as. due to theiwr short duration. management
considers the carrying amounts recognised to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value

12 INVENTORIES

2012 2011
£°000 £000
2012 2011
£000 £000
Raw materials 493 -
Work in progress 273 -
Finished goods 1,038 335
1,804 335
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
£°000 £000
Trade receivables 1,107 353
Other debtors 1,146 1,183
Prepayments and accrued income 997 481
3,250 2,017

All trade receivables are within credit terms of between 30 to 60 days and do not bear any effective
interest
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The fair value of these short term financial assets 1s not individually determined as the carrving

amount 1s a reasonable approximation of fair value

At the balance sheet date, trade recervables are aged as follows Whilst some of these amounts are
past due, none of the amounts are considered to be impaired 1n management’s opinion

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days

2012 2011
£000 £°000
938 -
169 353
1,107 353

All trade receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment based on the age of the
balances outstanding and the credit worthiness of the third parties from which these balances are due

During the year £531,000 of accrued income was writien off relating to a prior year licence agreement
with Cloud Tag Inc to use Sensium® technology for sports and fitness applications in the UK During
the year certain trade receivables were found to be impaired and a provision of £20.000 (2011

£19,000) has been made accordingly The movement 1n the provision for impairment during the year

15 as follows

At | January 2011

Increase 1n provision for impairment
At 31 December 2011

Increase m provision for impairment
At 31 December 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

GBP £

USD %

Euro €

Hong Kong $
Taiwanese $

£000

15

4

19

1

20

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
9,133 1,992
4,940 139
1,078 -
114 -

- 43
15,265 2,174
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GBP £

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Other payables
Accruals

2012 2011
£'000 £000
92,133 1,992
2012 2011
£000 £000
1,571 960
3,219 313
2,990 564
7,780 1,847

All of the above are due within one yvear The fair value of trade and other payables has not been
disclosed as, due to their short duration, management considers the carrying amounts recognised to

be a reasonable approximation of their fair value

16 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
4.000.000,000 ordinary shares of 0 25p

Allotted, issued and fully paid
1.135.651,456 (2011 629,437.868) ordinary shares of
025p

The movement 1in the number of shares 1s as follows

At 1 January 2011
Shares 1ssued

At 31 December 2011
Shares 1ssued

At 3] December 2012

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
10,000 10,000
2,838 1,574
Number of

ordmary shares

593,624.726
35,813,142

629,437,868
506,213,588
1,135,651,456

All shares are equally eligible to recerve dividends and the repayment of capital and represent

equal votes at meetings of shareholders

Allotments durtng the year

13 February 2012 128.000,001 ordinary shares of 0 25p were 1ssued to stitutional investors each
at a price of 8 75p per share The difference between the total consideration recerved of £11 2m
and the total nomnal value of shares 1ssued has been transferred to the share premium account

24 February 2012 880,120 ordinary shares of 0 25p were 1ssued in relation to the exercise of

options by employees
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21 March 2012 57.142,857 ordmary Shares of 0 25p were 1ssued at 8 75p n regard to the exchange
of Imagination Technologies Group plc's (LSE IMG, 'Imagination’) mterest in the Company's Toumaz
Microsystems subsidiary for (Exchange Shares’) of the Company

17 August 275.365,857 ordinary Shares of 0 25p were 1ssued to institutional 1nvestors at a price of
10 25p per share The difference between the total consideration recerved of £28 2m and the total
nominal value of shares i1ssued has been transferred to the share premium account

21 August 2012 41.300.925 ordinary Shares of 0 25p were 1ssued at a price of 10 25p per share
The difference between the total consideration recerved of £42 3m and the total nominal value of
shares 1ssued has been transferred to the share premium account

30 August 2012 1ssued 385.169 ordinary shares of 0 25p 1n settlement of deferred consideration due to
two former directors of Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Limited ("Frontier") in respect of Frontier's
acquisition by Toumaz

13 November 2012 1ssued 833,613 new ordinary shares of 0 25p each in settlement of deferred
consideration due to a former employee of Frontier Stlicon (Holdings) Limited ("Frontier"} in respect
of Frontier's acquisition by Toumaz

30 October 2012 2,108.600 ordinary shares of 0 25p were 1ssued 1n relation to the exercise of
options by employees over ordinary shares

31 December 2012 196,446 ordinary shares of 0 25p were 1ssued 1n relation to the exercise of
options by employees over ordmary shares

Share options

At 31 December 2012, options over 14.305,385 (2011 24.197,935) ordinary shares were 1n 1ssue to
directors serving at that date as disclosed in the Report on Remuneration  In addition, at that date the
Company had 1n 1ssue 19,386,110 (2011 14.963,652) further options Details of the fair value of all
options in existence 1s provided 1n Note 22

Shares and options allotted between the year end date and the date of approval of the financial
statements are included n note 25

17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent habilities at 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011

18 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There were no capital commitments at 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011
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19 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

Rent
Other

Total

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Withinl 1toSyears Overs Total
year years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

387 950 159 1,496

831 1,316 - 2,147

1,218 2,266 159 3,643

The Group uses financial instruments comprising cash and cash equivalents. other loans and various
other short-term 1nstruments such as trade receivables and trade payables which arise from 1ts

operations The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to fund the Group’s business strategy
and the short-term working capital requirements of the business

Financial assets by category

The 1AS 39 categories of financial asset included m the balance sheet and the headings in which they

are included are as follows

2012 2011
Loans Non Balance Loans Non Balance
and financial sheet and financial sheet
receivables assets total receivables assets total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Goodwill - 19,118 19,118 - 16,533 16,533
Other intangibles - 17,742 17,742 - 6,637 6,637
assets
Property, plant and
equipment - 665 665 - 152 152
Interest in associates
and available for sale
investments - - - - 11 11
Other non current - 221 221 - 1,434 1,434
assets
Inventories - 1,804 1,804 - 335 335
Trade receivables 1,107 - 1,107 353 353
Other recetvables 1,146 - 1,146 1,183 - 1,183
Prepayments and
accrued mcome - 997 997 - 481 481
Tax receivable - 1,598 1,598 - 018 618
Cash and cash
equivalents 15,265 - 15,265 2,174 - 2,174
Total 17,518 42,145 59,663 3,710 26,201 29,911
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities by category

The 1AS 39 categories of financial iabiity included in the balance sheet and the headings in which
they are included are as follows

2012 2011
Financial
Other  liabilities Liabilities Other Liabilities
financial at fair not financial not
liabilities value within liabilities within
at through the scope at the scope of
amortised profit & of amortised IAS 39
cost loss ITAS 39 Total cost Total
£000 £°000 £'000 £1000 £'000 £000 £'000
Trade payables 1,571 - - 1,571 960 - 960
Other payables 313 2,906 - 3219 323 - 323
Accruals and deferred
mcome 2,990 - - 29% 564 - 564
Total 4,874 2,906 - 7,780 1,847 - 1,847

The Group 1s exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both 1ts operating and
investing activities  The Board 1s responsible for co-ordinating the Group's risk management and
focuses on actively securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows Long term financial
investments are managed to generate lasting returns

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets and has no financial
derivatives The most significant risks to which the Group 1s exposed are described below

Credit risk

The Group’s credit nsk 1s primarily attributable to 1ts trade recervables, recoverable taxation and
cash and cash equivalents The amounts presented m the balance sheet are net of any allowance
for doubtful recervables, estimated by the Directors The Group has a concentration of credit nsk
due to exposure from a limited number of customers This 1s managed at the highest level in the
Group and 15 noted as Business Risk on page 11 The maximum credit risk to which the Group 15
exposed from 1ts trade receivables 1s £1 1m Cash at bank 15 all held with highly rated banks the
suitability of which are periodically reviewed

Liquidity rsks

The Group seeks to manage risks to ensure sufficient iquidity 1s available to meet foreseeable
needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably Short term flexibility 15 achieved by the use
of money markets to deposit excess cash which 1s not required in the short term  The Directors
prepare rolling cashflow forecasts and seek to raise additional funding whenever a shortfall 1n
facilities 1s forecast Details of the funding status of the Group are included n the going concern
paragraph in the principal accounting policies
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All the financial habilities noted above expected to result in cash outflow within s1x months of the
year end

Currency risks

The Group 1s exposed to translation foreign exchange risk in connection with 1ts investment n
Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Ltd whose subsidiaries are Frontier Silicon (Hong Kong) Ltd
incorporated in Hong Kong and Frontier Silicon (Ireland) Ltd incorporated in Ireland and 1ts
investment 1n Toumaz Healthcare Limited whose subsidiary, Toumaz Asia Pte Limited, 15
Singapore incorporated. the Group does not hedge any transactions As a result the Group 1s
subject to foreign currency risk 1n respect of accounting for its investment in the subsidiaries

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabihities which expose the Group to currency
risk are disclosed below The amounts shown are those reported to the Directors and translated mto
GBP at the closing rate used 1n the consolidated financial statements

2012
Euro HKS TWD
£'000 £000 £'000
Assets 24 298 6
Liabilinies (24) (137) (38)
Total - 161 (32)
exposure

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the vear Frontter Silicon Limited purchased goods, services and assets to the value of
£1,764,000 from Imagination Technologies Limited, a company that owns 10 5% of the share capital
of Toumaz Limited At the year end there was an outstanding balance of £311,000 due from Frontier
Silicon Limited to Imagination Technologies Limited in respect of these purchases

During the year Imagination Technologies Limited purchased goods from Frontier Silicon Limited to
the value of £36,000 At the yvear end there was an outstanding balance of £16,000 owing to Frontier
Silicon Limited 1n respect of these sales

The company paid Imagmation Technologies Limited £18.000 during the year in respect to director’s
services from Sir H Yossaie

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures’ from
disclosing transactions with other members of the group headed by Toumaz Limtted

During the year £531,000 was written off relating to a prior year licence agreement with Cloud Tag
Inc a company in which the Group had a 10% interest
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22 EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

(i) Employee benefits expense
The average number of employees during the vear was 89 (2011 78)

Expense recognised for employee benefits. including Directors” emoluments, 1s analysed below

2012 2011

£000 £°000

Wages and salaries 5,463 3,759
Share based payment 51 52
Pensions — defined contribution scheme 123 44
5,637 3,855

Included wathin the above, fully disclosed n the Report on Remuneration on page 18, are amounts
1n respect of Directors, including the non-executive Directors Key Personnel include the CEO,
CFO VP of Marketing. Sales, Engineering Operations and HR The compensation of key
management personnel 1s as follows

2012 2011

£2000 £000

Fees and emoluments 760 390
Share based payment 11 -
771 390

(1) Equity compensation benefits

Prior to 31 December 2008 the Group had adopted an employee Share Option Scheme (the
“Employee Share Option Scheme™) in order to incentivise key management and staff Pursuant to
the Employee Share Option Scheme, a duly authorised commuttee of the Board of Directors of the
Company may, at 1ts discretion, grant options to eligible employees, including Directors, of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price not less than
the higher of (1) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant of the particular option or (11) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company for the five trading davs immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options or
(1) the nominal value of the shares Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of outstanding options and are available for re-use The fair
value of options granted was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model

Sigmficant inputs into the calculations were as follows

. 50% volatility based on expected share price (ascertained by reference to historic share prices
of both the Company and comparable histed companies)

. a risk free interest rate of between 3 5% and 5 0%

= share prices at date of grant of between 8p and 16 25p

. exercise prices of between 3 6p and 25p

" 0% dividend vield

" estimated option lives of between 24 months and 60 months

On 10 September 2009 the Board of Directors adopted (1) a new Enterprise Management (EMI)
option plan (2) to approve the grants of EMI and non EMI options (Unapproved Options) to
certain members of the Board and (3) to arrange for the replacement of employee share options 1n

59|Pag



TOUMAZ LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

Future Waves (UK) Limited (Future Waves) and Future Waves PTE Ltd (Future Waves PTE) with
options 1n the company Share options granted on 21 January 2010 to directors under (1) and (2}
above were granted to Directors at 6p with the share price of the Company at 8 63p on the date of
1ssue Share options granted on 18§ September 2009 under (3) above 1ssued at 3 7p with the share
price at 8 63p on the date of 1ssue In respect of these i1ssues the fair value of options granted was
determined using the Black Scholes valuation model  Significant inputs into the calculations were
as follows

. 50% volatility based on expected share price (ascertained by reference to historic share prices
of both the Company and comparable listed companies)

a risk free interest rate of between 3 5% and 5 0%

share prices at date of grant of 8 63p

exercise prices of between 3 7p and 6p

0% dividend vield

estimated option lives of 48 months

On 10 March 2010 the Board of Directors approved (1) an Enterprnise Management (EMI) option
plan under which employees were granted options over 5.789,565 shares (2) a non EMI option
(Unapproved Options) plan under which certain non EMI qualifying individuals were granted
options over 1.050,000 shares Share options granted under both schemes were 1ssued at 7p with
the share price at 7 12p on the date of 1ssue In respect of these 1ssues the fair value of options
granted was determined using the Black Scholes valuation model Significant inputs into the
calculations were as follows

. 50% volatility based on expected share price (ascertained by reference to historic share prices
of both the Company and comparable listed companies)

a risk free interest rate of between 3 5% and 5 0%

share prices at date of grant of 7 12p

exercise price of 7p

0% dividend vield

estimated option lives of 72 months

At 31 December 2012, the Group had the following options outstanding

Date of original Dates exercisable and lapse Exercise  Share Number Fair value
grant price price at
date of
15sue
13 January 2003 50% after 13 January 2003 and 50%
after 13 January 2006 These options 12 95p and
lapse on 12 January 2013 3 6p 16 25p 1.872,208 13 12p
26 September 2003 50% after 26 September 2003 and
50% after 26 September 2006
These options lapse on 25 12 92p and
September 2013 36p 1625 144,016 13 08p
3 March 2005 50% after 3 March 2007 and 50%
after 3 March 2008 These options
lapse on 2 March 2015 52p  1625p 2,216,224 12 58p
30 September 2005  After 31 May 2006 These options
lapse on 1 June 2013 6 94p 16 25p 1.683,335 9 54p
24 Qctober 2006 50% after 23 October 2008 and 50%
after 23 October 2009 subject to a 2 72p and
share price of 25p These options 8 75p 875p  2,000.000 335p

lapse on 1 October 2016
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20 November 2006  50% after 19 November 2008 and
50% after 19 November 2009
subject to a share price of 25p

These options lapse on 1 November
2016

13 March 2007 50% after 13 March 2009 and
50% after 13 March 2010 subject to
fast 12 months revenue being greater
than £12 million and the last six
months average monthly revenue
1s greater than £750,000 These
options lapse on 1 March 2017

18 September 2009  Conversion of former share options
held by employees in Future Waves
UK Lid Exercisable on or after 18
January 2010 Good leaver rules
apply These options lapse on 1
September 2017

18 September 2009  Conversion of former share options
held by directors in Future Waves
UK Ltd Exercisable on or after 18
September 2009 These options
lapse on 1 September 2017

21 January 2010 Directors™ options exercisable after
21 January 2010 These options
lapse on 20 September 2017

13 March 2010 Employee share options exercisable
after 12 March 2013

Outstanding at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010

The movement on share options and their weighted average exercise price are as follows

Outstanding at 1 January 2012

Lapsed during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at 31 December 2012

2 66p and
85p 85p  1.000,000 328p
975p 975p 1,475,000 399
37p 8 63p 829,183 4 93p
37p 8 63p 1,622,000 4 93p
6p 863p 16,000,000 273p
Tp 678 4,849,479 223p
33,691,945
Number Weighted
average
exercise price
(pence)
39,161,587 560
(2,309,630) 4 90
(3,160,012) 367
33,691,945 5.24

Of the 33.691,945 (2011 39,161,587) share options in existence at 31 December 2012 24.367.466

(2011 31.888,126) are exercisable
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The weighted average remaining contractual hife of share options outstanding at 31 December
2012154 7 years (2011 8 vears)

Employee share-based expense of £51.000 (2011 £52,000) has been included 1n the consohidated
income statement 1n accordance with IFRS 2 “Share Based Payments’™ which gave rise to a share
based payment reserve No habilities were recogmsed due to share-based payment transactions
The deferred tax asset amounting to approximately £14.600 (2011 £14,600) has not been provided
on the share-based payment expense due to there being insufficient certainty regarding its

recovery

Options 1ssues since the balance sheet date are disclosed 1n note 25

Name
Toumaz Healthcare
Limited

Toumaz Microsystems
Limited

Future Waves UK
Limited

Nanoscience Limited
Frontier Silicon

(Holdings) Limited

Frontier Silicon
Limred'

Frontter Silicon
(Ireland) Limited’

Frontier Silicon (HK)
Limited”

Toumaz US., LLC?

23 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Principal activity

Development and exploitation in
the healthcare sector

Development and exploitation in
relation wireless semiconductor
chips and embedded solutions

Dormant Intermediate holding
Company
Dormant

The company 1s a holding
company and has no trading
activity itself

Development, manufacture and sale

of digital radio and internet radio
technologies

Development of digital radio and
internet radio technologies

Company providing support services

from Hong Kong and Peoples
republic of China

Development and exploitation in
the healthcare sector

Place of
incorporation

England and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wales

Republic of Ireland

Hong Kong

USA

% Equity

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

20%
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'owned by Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Limited
*owned by Frontier Silicon Limited

‘owned by Toumaz Healthcare Limited

24 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objective 1s to ensure that there 15 adequate capital within the
business to preserve the working capital required for on-going trading and to provide the Group with
the necessary resources to develop products that will generate future profitable revenue streams
Whilst management actively seeks to secure funding in the form that 1s most advantageous to both the
business and the shareholders, the nature of the Group's current activities means that this 1s typically
limited to equity funding As such the Group does not actively manage targets for ratios of debt to
equity funding

25 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Share Capital

11 January 2013 1.728,192 ordinary shares of 0 25p were 1ssued 1n relation to the exercise of
options by employees over ordinary shares

Share Options

On 25 January 2013 33,504,887 JSOP Shares were admitted pursuant to a newly approved share
option scheme adopted by the Board on 5 October 2012  Awards granted under the JSOP will vest on
the third anniversary of their grant and value can be realised in respect of such awards from this date
until the tenth anmversary of the date of grant Participants will receive the full value of the share
The rules allow for options to be granted at an exercise price of £0 0025 being equal to the nominal
value of the shares with a three vear vesting period and a further seven years 1n which the options may
be exercised If the options are not exercised by the tenth anniversary of grant, they will lapse The
vesting of these options for directors 1s conditional on the performance of the Company share price
relative to the FTSE All Share Index

On 25 January 2013 the Company granted options over 10.410,285 ordinary shares under the Toumaz
Limited Unapproved Share Optton Scheme (2012 Rules) to employees of the Company and other
certain individuals

26 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 Apnil 2013
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s given that the annual general meeting of the members of Toumaz Litd will be held at College
Hill. London on the 14™ June 2013 at 9 00am to consider and, 1f thought fit, to pass the resolutions set
out below

Ordinary resolutions

1 To receive the report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012

2 To elect Anthony Sethull retiring as a director due to his appomntment having been made since
the last annual general meeting 1n accordance with the Company’s articles of association and, being
ehgible. offering himself for reappointment as a director of the Company

3 To elect Jonathan Apps retiring as a director due to his appointment having been made since
the last annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and. being
eligible, offering himself for reappointment as a director of the Company

4 To elect Chris Batterham retiring as a director due to his appomtment having been made simce
the last annual general meeting in accordance with the Company”s articles of association and, being
eligible. offering himself for reappointment as a director of the Company

6 To re-elect Hossein Yaissae as a director who 1s retiring by rotation in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and. being eligible, offering himself for reappointment as a
director of the Company

7 To re-elect Martin Knight as a director who 1s retining by rotation in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and, being eligible. offering himself for reappointment as a
director of the Company

8 To re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors and to authorise the directors to determine
remuneration
9 That the directors be authorised to disapply the pre-emption rights set out in article 17 of the

articles of association, such power to expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next annual general
meeting, and that the directors may allot equity securities following an offer or agreement made
before the expiry of the authority and provided that the authority 1s limited to

91 the allotment of equity securities pursuant to the exercise of any of the options either
granted or to be granted under the company’s share option scheme, and

92 the allotment of equity securinies, otherwise than in accordance with paragraph 6 1 up
to an aggregate nominal amount of being fifteen per cent of the company’s 1ssued share capital on the
date of this notice

By order of the board
Jonathan Apps
Secretary

Registered Office

14" May 2013
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Notes to General Meeting
1 A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint one or more proxies
to attend and on a poll vote 1n his place A proxy need not be a member of the company

2 The 1nstrument appointing a proxy and (in the case of an instrument signed by an agent of the
member who 15 not a corporation} the authority under which such instrument 1s signed or and office
copy or duly certified copy must be deposited at the office of Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Kent BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting or any
adjourned meeting , A prepaid form of proxy for use 1n respect of the meeting ts enclosed

3 Completion of a form of proxy will not prevent a member form attending and voting in
person
4 Members will be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1f they are registered on the

Company’s register of members 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting or any adjourned
meeting

5 In the case of joint holders of the shares in the Company, the vote of the senior holder shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders(s) For this purpose, seniority will be
determined by the order in which the names appear in the Company’s register of shareholders (or the
Company's registrars records)

6 In the case of hoiders of depositary interests representing ordinary shares in eh capital of the
Company, a form of direction must be completed n order to instruct Capita IRG Trustees Limited to
vote on the holders behalf at the meeting, or 1f the meeting 15 adjourned, at any adjourned meeting
To be effective, a completed and signed form of direction must be delivered to Capita Registrars,
PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Kent BR3 4TU by no later than 72 hours before the time fixed for the
meeting or any adjourned meeting

7 As at 11 30 am on [4™ May 2013 the Company’s 1ssued share capital comprised (TBC)
ordnary shares of 25p each Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of
the Company The shares held i the JSOP Employee trust have at present no voting rights Therefore
the total number of voting nights in the Company as at 11 30 14™ May 2013 15 (TBC)
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FILE COPY

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION
OF AN OVERSEA COMPANY

(Registration of a UK establishment)
Company No. FC031563

UK Establishment No. BR016631

The Registrar of Companies hereby certifies that
TOUMAZ GROUP LTD

has this day been registered under the Companies Act 2006 as having
established a UK Establishment in the United Kingdom.

Given at Companies House on 15th October 2013.
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